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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to report that the Company
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) achieved a
steady growth in its results for the year 2013 with sale
revenue of HK$1,308.2 million, representing an increase
of 13.2% when comparing with the corresponding period
of last year, the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company reached HK$223.9 million, representing
an increase of 13.3% when comparing with the
corresponding period of last year.

In 2013, in response to the intense market competitive
environment, through firmly capturing the needs
of customers in social security, electricity, identity
authentication, etc. sectors, actively enhancing the synergy
with the upstream and downstream industrial chains,
continuing to launch industry leading products one after
another to satisfy customer needs, the Group has sustained
its growth with a year-on-year increase in revenue of
13.2%. In particular, sale revenue in the credential sector
like social security card chips and identity card chips, etc.
had exceeded HK$600 million, and sale revenue in the
industry sector like electricity card chips, telecommunication
card chips and fuel card chips, etc. had exceeded HK$400
million. During the year, the Group had increased its
efforts in the research and development of new EMV card
products, and strived to expand into new business growth
points.
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To implement its business diversification strategy, the
Group has acquired the entire equity interest in China
Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd ("CEC
Technology”) in last year. Such acquisition is in the process
of obtaining the necessary approval from the relevant
PRC governmental authorities. The principal business
activities of CEC Technology and its subsidiaries are the
development and management of industrial parks in the
PRC which provides a platform for industry players to
develop electronic information technology business. Upon
successful completion of the acquisition, the Group will
strive to develop the software and hardware environment
which is beneficial to the development of hi-tech
enterprises, providing comprehensive services that integrate
industrial guidance, funding support, technology support
and livelihood services, and further expand and strengthen
the science and technology park development business,
and to position it as one of the Group's focuses for future
business development, and to help improve the Group’s
future profitability. At the beginning of this year, with the
tremendous assistance from our controlling shareholder,
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), and
through its credit enhancement support, the Company
successfully issued a 4.70% unsecured bonds due 2017 in
the principal amount of RMB2,750 million. The proceeds
from this bond will set a solid foundation for the future
development of Company.

Looking forward to 2014, under the strategic guidance of
CEC of “Building a new system for the development of
electronic technology of China”, the Group will continue
to implement and review the established operation
and investment strategies of the Group leveraging
on the existing resources available, while seeking for
other investment opportunities to improve the Group's
profitability and bring positive return for our shareholders.

Mr. Zhao Guiwu resigned as non-executive director and
vice chairman of the Company in October last year. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to thank Mr. Zhao for his
invaluable contributions over the years.

On behalf of the Board, | am delighted to welcome Mr. Liu
Hongzhou as executive director and vice chairman of the
Company. Mr. Liu, with extensive experience and impressive
credentials, will no doubt extend the diversity and refresh
the talent base of the Board.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all staff
members for their contributions and efforts in the past year.
I would also like to express our most sincere gratitude to
our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
co-operation and support.

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's integrated circuits design business comprises
the design of integrated circuits chips and the development
of application system. Currently, our products are mainly
used in smart cards such as identity cards, social security
cards, telecommunication cards and electricity cards. Our
products are also applied in wireless local area networks.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has
obtained 34 new patents, and registered another 19
computer software copyrights and 19 integrated circuits
layout designs.

Due to the further intensification of market price
competition in 2013, the average selling prices of
integrated circuits chip products were generally lower
when comparing with those of the 2012. The Group on
one hand adjusted its product mix in its smart card chips
business and concentrated on products which have a better
gross profit margin, on the other hand stepped up its
effort in cost control and expanded the market share of its
products. Through successfully boosting the sales of some
of our main products, the overall sales volume recorded a
slight increase during the year ended 31 December 2013,
which compensated the impact of the decrease in the
average selling prices of integrated circuits chip products
on the revenue for the year. Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2013 amounted to HK$1,308.2 million,
representing an increase of 13.2% when comparing with
the corresponding period of last year. As the combined
effects of the improvement on the product mix of the
Group and effective cost control had out-weighed the
impact of the decrease in the average selling prices of
integrated circuits chip products on the gross profit, the
gross profit increased by 30% to HK$587.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. During the year, the overall
gross profit margin has increased 5.8 percentage points to
44.9%.

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to HK$59.1 million (2012:
HK$57.3 million). As a percentage to revenue, selling and
marketing costs decreased to 4.5% for the year ended 31
December 2013 from 5% of the corresponding period of
last year. The decrease was due to stringent cost control
measures implemented during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR DM

Administrative expenses increased by 58.7% to HK$318.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
was mainly attributable to the increase in research and
development costs, provision for impairment of trade
receivables and increase in staff costs. Research and
development costs were HK$213 million in 2013 (2012:
HK$163.4 million), which represented 16.3% of the
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
14.1%). Research and development during the year
primarily focused on the EMV card and mobile payment
card chip products.

Government grants recognised as income decreased by
12.6% to HK$26.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 resulted from less government subsidies for research
and development costs incurred by the Group in 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$223.9
million (2012: HK$197.6 million), and the basic earnings
per share was HK13.24 cents (2012: HK11.68 cents).

The Company paid a special dividend in cash of HK$0.03
per share out of the contributed surplus account of the
Company to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 2 October 2013.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 of HK$0.03 per share (2012: nil), amounting to a
total dividend of HK$50.7 million, is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group finances its operations primarily by internal
resources and short term bank loans. At 31 December
2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting
to HK$746 million, 99% of which was denominated in
Renminbi, 0.5% in United States dollars and 0.5% in Hong
Kong dollars (2012: HK$476.6 million, 77.5% of which
was denominated in Renminbi, 22% in United States
dollars and 0.5% in Hong Kong dollars).

HZE2013F12A31B EFETBRHA X EFA58.7%
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RAREEAZEFEAEREBICERBEES AR
SR EmZFEE

AR AREBR2013FEANFE LK RNES
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Management Discussion and Analysis

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unsecured
short term bank loans of HK$0.1 million, which were
denominated in Renminbi (2012: HK$1.2 million, which
were denominated in Renminbi). The bank loans were
borrowed at contracted fixed interest rate. At 31 December
2013, committed borrowing facilities available to the
Group but not drawn amounted to HK$432.3 million. The
Group's revenue are mainly denominated in Renminbi and
payments are denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities that
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. The Group will make use of hedging
contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the risk of foreign
exchange fluctuation arising from its operations.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets
of HK$867.9 million (2012: HK$736.5 million). The overall
gearing ratio, which is calculated as the total liabilities over
total assets of the Group, was 42.7% (2012: 40.3%).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any
pledged asset (2012: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group has outstanding capital
commitment for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in
CEC Technology amounted to HK$763.1 million (2012: nil).
The Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2013 (2012: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 365
employees, the majority of whom were based in the PRC.
Employee benefit expenses for the year were HK$140.5
million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre and
competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy and
performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration policies are
largely in line with industry practices, and are formulated
on the basis of performance and experience and will be
reviewed regularly. Bonuses and other merit payments
are linked with the performance of the Group and of the
individuals as incentive to optimise performance.

BEENWR DM

M2013F 128310 AEBEMEEFRBRTE
AAE0TEEBITIWAARKSE (20120 :1.28
BAL UARKE) - RITEFIZEITHONE
EFREER2013F12A8318  KREE &K
B EBAGEEHEREALIN3EEB T -NEE
WAZTZUARBEEE NI RAARE RAETLLE
HoNERBMARKREGERIREERZEER
BENEBEEREEE N At EREM
Ef-AEESRERNANAEPEOERRE L%
% By HNPE R B R B o

MR2013F12A318 AKEERBHEEFEAR
867.9B & IT (20124 : 73658 8B /8 7T) - BB
BEARBRBRLEER(UAEBENBAERABEEST
E)B42.7% (20124 1 40.3% ) °

EERHA

R2013%F12 8318 A& E I &I 7] & & K 38
(20124 : &) -

EXAERIBEE

MR2013F 128318 A& B KEH ERX
100% R AR M AT N2 BEARNEIERTG1EES
T (20124 1 ) - A2013F 128318 A& E
WEARERNKEEE (2012F ) -

EEREFMBUER
R2013F12A31H AEBEEBH365%EE - K

BMORPEAML T FRIEERNFE /1405
BEBITe

AEEEIINEFAT LEHREENEEE A
BEEENREBER L TERRMEE-EE
HE N BCR BB XA E A RBUART  HIRKRIR KR T
TR A EERIR] I E BE L iRy o EAT R Ho
REDEFAKERERNRERRMETE A%
BB EBRERSE-

FEEFEEEREBRAR 2013FFH



10

Corporate Governance Report

REREE

The Company is committed to achieving the best corporate
governance practices by emphasising its accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The
Company is dedicated to exercise corporate governance
through regular reviews of its adopted practices with
reference to the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2013. The following summarises the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
consists of three executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors.
The roles of the chairman of the Board are segregated
from the managing director. The chairman of the Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning of
the Board and the strategic development of the Group.
The managing director is delegated with the authority and
responsible for managing the Group’s business, and the
implementation of the Group's strategies in achieving the
overall business objectives. The position of the chairman of
the Board and the managing director are held separately
by Mr. Rui Xiaowu and Mr. Xie Qinghua, respectively.
Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability. There are no financial,
business, family or other material relationships among the
directors (including the chairman of the Board and the
managing director).

RRARBNEBEaKIENEEERTR LE
AEME -BH B BEEMAFAE -AAQF
u/u/\%:L’let%E/D RERFBMEARIBERA

BHLEMAR (T LERHREN) M ER14FTH 2 1
%a/pﬁrﬁﬂ ([EEEIESFAI]) E R FTER 498y
B

AABREZE2013F12A31BIEFERH BT
ETARBINES4ARTH 2 S EEATAIRNER A
B e T AR R RMANTEEEZTAER -

EEg
ARBIEFE([EFTC)H=-RUTES — %
FATEER =B FPTESTEAR -EFS
Ifﬁﬁ%$i@,ﬁ$£¥%ﬁiﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁéiﬂ"E’JTWH%’H_\‘Lo
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REBAOR H“%’é " ERAKEEREYTZEEAR
SEXBZEELEERNEENERE  NEKE
BREZABR EFeTRNEFAKENRLUD
AANBEREENHEEREET - ZFRAD
o APMAEBYMELHEL -EF (BHEES
SIRLEFALE) ZELBEMME BHE-
RIEREMBERER-
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All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules and
the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration of the
directors are determined with reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, and to the prevailing market
conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long term
business objectives, strategies and plans, and to monitor
and control the operating and financial performance of the
Group. The day-to-day operations and implementation of
business objectives are delegated to the managing director.
The management is delegated with proper authority to
carry out daily operations and duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including developing and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct applicable to directors, and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code.

The Board has the power and is responsible for appointing
new directors to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. The Board will consider whether the candidate’s
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience to achieve the
diversity of members of the Board) meet the requirements
of the Company when considering a nomination. In 2013,
a Board meeting was held to consider and approve the
appointment of Mr. Liu Hongzhou as executive director and
vice chairman of the Company. When considering Mr. Liu's
nomination and appointment, the Board has applied the
above mentioned criteria and procedures.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

All directors have actively participated in the review and
monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board meets
regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between scheduled
meetings, the senior management of the Group provides
information to directors on a regular basis regarding
the activities and development in the businesses of the
Group. The directors have full access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. With respect
to regular meetings of the Board, the directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in
advance and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than 3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors are given as much notice as is reasonable and
practicable in the circumstances. If a director has a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting. Independent
non-executive directors who, and whose associates, have
no material interest in the transaction should be present
at that Board meeting. All minutes of Board and Board
committee meetings are kept by the company secretary
of the Company to record in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board or Board
committee, including any concerns raised or dissenting
views expressed by any director. These minutes are available
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any director. The attendance record of the directors at
the annual general meeting, Board and Board committee
meetings held in 2013 are set out in the table on page
21 of the annual report. Besides providing sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Group, all directors have
disclosed to the Company the number and nature of the
offices held in other public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments, and updated the
Company on any subsequent changes in a timely manner.
Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the directors from their risk
exposure arising from the business of the Group.

REEURB2ERMNRERARAEK -EF
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

The directors acknowledge the need to continue to EEMRATEREERUEN AT MBAREES
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills for ARARQNRMEHBER - TRBIIZESZN20134F
making contributions to the Company. The participation REVEELMRARESFZ AR BRLBEZ
by individual directors in the continuous professional SEEEBRRITE 2B

development programme with appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in 2013 is recorded in the table below.

Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
B & SR
EERE HAs
BEHER WHE EH
Non-executive directors FHITES
Rui Xiaowu NER v v
Zhao Guiwu* HER* ¥
Executive directors HITES
Xie Qinghua T 4 v
Liu Hongzhou ZI4TM v 4
Liu Jinping 2EF v v
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Chan Kay Cheung PRAE & 4 4
Qiu Hongsheng B A v/ v
Yin Yongli F K 4
* Resigned in 2013 4 R2013F FF (T
The biographies of the directors are set out on pages 22 to EEHEEHNFME22BEEFE25H

25 of the annual report.

FEEFEEEREBRAR 2013FFH

13



14

Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2013.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

The remuneration and nomination committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu
Hongsheng, Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Yin Yongli and
an executive director Mr. Xie Qinghua. Mr. Qiu Hongsheng
is the chairman of the remuneration and nomination
committee. The terms of reference of the remuneration and
nomination committee, which described its authority and
duties, is available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include reviewing and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy
and the remuneration of the directors and the senior
management, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives, to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors, responsible for identification
and recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as directors, making recommendations to the Board on
matters relating to appointment or re-appointment of
directors, succession planning for directors and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

21

tiﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬁk%%?&ﬁ@%?&% Ry R 2
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UREEFETHNERR D EARBHEH AR
BB MBEFHEER REE2013F124
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REBEABOFER RFMIE A EFHBAE
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To demonstrate the Company’s commitment to achieve
best corporate governance practices, the Board adopted
a revised terms of reference of the remuneration and
nomination committee in September 2013, to comply
with a new CG Code provision on board diversity which
came into effect from September 2013. Pursuant to the
revised terms of reference, in making recommendations
to the Board in respect of the composition of the Board,
the appointment, re-appointment or removal of directors,
the remuneration and nomination committee should give
adequate consideration, including but not limited to, the
followings:

i) members of the Board have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Group's business;

ii) the Board includes a balanced composition of
directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement;

iii) having taking into account of the Group’s own
business model and specific needs, through
consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience to achieve
the diversity of members of the Board; and

iv) the appointment of new directors follows a formal,
considered and transparent procedure.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held three meetings. The attendance record
of the committee members at these meetings are set out
in the table on page 21 of the annual report. The work
performed by the remuneration and nomination committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and the
senior management, determining the remuneration of the
executive directors, reviewing the policy for the nomination
of directors, making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors, and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

Corporate Governance Report
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BHONBARABNEBRSESKENEEEARTE
B BEEMN2013FIARMEETNHFINRIRESR
ZEOREHEE BT —HR2013FIAEK
CEEFENEZTERFIEREE S TR
BEZETNRESEZ aHEESEANRE
EZE EEREENESTSROERT  FHM
MRRZEBEBERDEETY (BETRRM) ZFER
Al :

i)y BEFgXEMASHE BABRANEIT
= ML A RO 1 B S

i) ENEAKBEzEBEANRABRTRZ
BAT BERNZEREE (BARM) M
Al Flk - XERHBEESRREXLRER
= RRASEFeNBEHEHANZTHE K

v) HEFZRERFEELA FERAEH
J_‘g'o

FR FHMERZEEERTZAEH -8XE8
RZEEHRZHECHEHINFRE21IAZR
BRA-FHEREEZEENFAZTEEERF
EENSREEABZHFHERLEH EEH
TESZHH RTRZEFTHBR AREXE
HEEEFAETSHFLER R EBIIER
TEFZHEMIE-
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REREE

Remuneration payable to senior management (excluding
directors) for the year ended 31 December 2013 is within
the HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 band. Details of
the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out on pages 78 to 80 of the
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr.
Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Yin Yongli. Mr. Chan Kay Cheung
is the chairman of the audit committee. The members have
extensive experience in financial matters and one of them is
a certified public accountant. The terms of reference of the
audit committee, which described its authority and duties,
is available on the Company’s website.

The audit committee provides an independent review
and supervision of financial reporting, and examines the
effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group and
ensuring the external auditor are independent and the
effectiveness of the audit process. The audit committee
examines all matters relating to the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, auditing functions,
internal controls, risk management and financial reporting.
External auditor and the directors are invited to attend the
committee meetings as and when necessary. The audit
committee also serves as a channel of communication
between the Board and the external auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out in the table on page 21 of the annual
report. The work performed by the audit committee during
the year included reviewing the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012, the unaudited consolidated interim
financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2013 and the effectiveness of the internal
control practices of the Group. The audit committee has
also reviewed the audit plan and approach of the external
auditor and monitored the progress and results of the audit
regularly.

HZE2013F12A31BLFERNEHREEA
B(TEREESE) ZFH MM F1,000,0008 =
1,500,000/ ST 88 [E - 8, £2013F 12 A31H It F
EEEHMNF BN FRFEISEEES0H -

=—RBIUFNTESF DRI RRE
=P EIE#\E?EE&EHK*UE‘EEZEEX BRIE S 5
ERERZEEIRE - SREAVREHREE
BFELERR Hh—RRaMestim -g%E8
CRESESD AN ARRBEA-

%7'(;;/\5 EHVBERETEIRT RE
23 AR AN G B N EBBEE 2 BN RE ¢ LA R IE(R INEE
V%(Eﬂ”%?—rﬁiﬂ%’?ﬁfﬁ']ﬁxﬁ|$ BEZEL B

SREMBERAEEFEMAN ST RAFEERH
EH BRI AIEEIE - RRE IR K FSE R
FH-AEFER  INERBMMEETRERLE
LEEER BERLEQOEEESTSHEINER
HEZEBEBROBR-

FAN BEREZECERITMAEH SZER%ZS
SHRIJNFEREEHIRNFERF2IEZRERN-
BEZZESERNFR I EEEENASEREH S
2012F 12 A3 A EFE 2R BZEE W HB®E
HE2013F6 A30H I NEA 2 R EEZEAT
IS SRR R A EPES IR R HE AN RE - BIXZ B € 7D
EERIINE AN EZAE RS A W EHE
REZIIENERIKGER -
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees payable
to the Company’s external auditor in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided to the Company and its
subsidiaries is set out below:

Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

IMNEE A% B AR
REZE2013F 128318 IEFE  stARQ 7] R HH
B AR ERENEZNIEEZRE R AR T INE
ZHAEANBREY T

2013

20135

HK$'000

FHET

Audit services EZ RS 5,217
Non-audit services (included tax matters, FEZRE (RREUKEE FHK

review and other reporting services) H {th R ¥R AR 7% ) 621

5,838

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow during the reporting period. A statement from
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 40 to 42 of the
annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2013, the directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
and have made prudent and reasonable judgments and
estimates and have prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The Board has (a) reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group,
including all the material controls in financial, operational
and compliance and risk management functions, (b)
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and the budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and (c) held discussion with the Group's external auditor, to
ensure that a sound internal control system is maintained
and operated by the management in compliance with the
agreed procedures and standards.

BEMEFX

EEC AR ERUBBRERNGEE BREEREE
FATFih RSB MR KRR EHRAHE L
EEFREeTRE - ZHMREBYBRRZ AR
EEAMBELNEPEHNFTRFIOBEEFEIE °
SIHE2013F12A31B I FENMEHRE - &=
EEEBEEN SRR ERERZSTEE
WERBESEMABMET IR ECERE
REMBRR - ESSE(RENEE NIBEEE
HEHOMEE (DREME E£EMNMFE M RERE
BNEMNMBEERER) b)ZBEAQRAEE
R GERBE A ENER BTERRER U
METHESNEIREREBRBEERS RS
W) EAERZINEZBMETHRBERERE
BHFLAERE —FEER TN AIPEIT#SE - FF
BFIHENRRF RIZ%E-

FEEFEEEREBRAR 2013FFH
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), registered
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the Board
or the company secretary of the Company to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such special general meeting shall be held within two
months from the date of deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
these shareholders. The written requisition will be verified
with the Company’s share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary of the Company will ask the Board
to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all the registered shareholders. On the
contrary, if the written requisition has been verified as not
in order, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a special general meeting will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene a
special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a special general
meeting, but any special general meeting so convened shall
be held within three months from the date of deposit of
such requisition.

B R AER
BRRBHERABBAGZRF

BEARAR AR ERZRMEE R AREI981FRRE
(1E5]) R E2EERKBHRFIEEEELAR
ARRAEGREZARAEHBRAT PR +5H—
(10%).2 B o IR IR - B REBE s B AN & 7] o i 4
E R il A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda' AIEE @5 AN 7 A
AMNEFHERE R ERXESTSZRAREREFIKR
SUREZERAEE 2AMER  MZRRE
FIAREERNEHE2EERHBEME R RNETT

EMERVAKARECLBRREZ A AN
RERARMEMEBEBBRRZE Z XHEMX -
EEZREHAAENECRZE ERERE
ENAREFR ARAARMERERESS
BRBERFNAREG YRBEEREERERT
MEERRREINBAS K2 EEEEL
RRERTHEERF ARABRREENSER
MRS AE R T ERERARH -

WEEEARENZEERAHPE_+—BAARR
BRRERFHIARE A2FA (KEPREREE
EFANERABEFLBALZEAAL)ITBETAE
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), either any number of the registered
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the registered shareholders concerned in
accordance with the statutory and regulatory requirements
to all the registered shareholders must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention
of the company secretary of the Company not less than six
weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution; and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition; and where
an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks
or less after the requisition requiring notice of a resolution
has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been
properly deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the
registered shareholders concerned in accordance with the

Corporate Governance Report
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statutory and regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the written requisition has
been verified as not in order, the shareholders concerned
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the
proposed resolution will not be included in the agenda for
the general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting wishes to propose a person other than a director
of the Company for election as a director at the general
meeting must validly serve (1) his/her written notice of
intention to propose a candidate for election as a director
at the general meeting; (2) a written notice signed by the
nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to
be elected; (3) the nominated candidate’s information as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent
to the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the Company's
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the
Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

LEERERAMEBECHRREDRERBANE
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Details of the director’s attendance at the annual general
meeting, Board and Board committee meetings held in
2013 are set out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report
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BB HETE

TREINSESN20B3FALERRBFAG
EFghEFREBEERLIAN:

Meetings attended/held
HERE, 2B RE
Remuneration
and
nomination Annual
Audit committee general
committee FMK meeting
Notes Board** % RA T3
Hrit Exgr £ZE® £ZE® BERE
Non-executive directors FHTES
Rui Xiaowu HIER 77* 1%
Zhao Guiwu HER 7 6/6 11
Executive directors BITEZ
Xie Qinghua HEE 6/6 33 17
Liu Hongzhou ZIATM 2 11
Liu Jinping BT 4/6 17
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Chan Kay Cheung BREE 717 22* 33 17
Qiu Hongsheng ilpda 777 22 3/3* 1/1
Yin Yongli FKH 717 22 33 1”1
* Chairman s *FE
** Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board 365 AP — R EFC DB EHEFS L EEREHTT

met with non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) without the executive directors and

management present.
Notes:
1. Resigned on 11 October 2013
2} Appointed on 11 October 2013

Hiat -

BEFNEREESHERNTER THHITEE

(BRABIHFPTEE) -

MR2013F 1011 BEHE
R2013F10A1MBEZ T
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENREREEAEHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Rui Xiaowu, aged 54, is the Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Rui graduated from the Science &
Technology University for National Defense of China in
1982 with a major in Computer Software, was a Master’s
postgraduate and a Research Fellow, and was awarded
the “Government Special Allowance” by the State Council
of the PRC. Mr. Rui is the chairman of China Electronics
Corporation Limited (“CEC"), the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Rui was previously the
director of the 710 Research Institute of the Ministry of
Aerospace Industry of China, the general manager of
China Satellite Communications Corporation and the
deputy general manager of China Aerospace Science &
Technology Corporation. Mr. Rui was also the chairman
of China Spacesat Company Limited (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the chairman, president
and an executive director of China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited, the chairman and a non-executive
director of APT Satellite Holdings Limited. Mr. Rui joined the
Company in August 2011.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Qinghua, aged 46, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Xie graduated from the School
of Economics and Management of Beijing Institute
of Technology and holds a postgraduate degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Xie is the chairman of China
Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CEC. Mr. Xie was in charge of the
Overseas Cooperation Department of CEC, the general
manager of the Strategic Planning Department of China
Great Wall Computer (Group) Corporation, the assistant
general manager and the secretary to the board of
directors of Great Wall Broadband Network Service Co.,
Ltd, the general manager of Beijing Branch of Great Wall
Broadband Network Service Co., Ltd, the general manager
of Shenzhen Great Wall Broadband Network Service
Co., Ltd, the assistant general manager of Aerostrong
Technology Co., Ltd, and in charge of the general manager
office and the project manager of the Communication
Network Department of Jitong Communications Limited.
Mr. Xie joined the Company in August 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 51, is the Vice Chairman of
the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
International Business of Nanjing University and holds a
postgraduate degree in Business and Administration, and
is a senior engineer. Mr. Liu, having spent much of his
career in CEC, was a divisional deputy director of the Asset
Management Department of CEC, an executive director
and the deputy general manager of Winfair Development
Limited, a divisional director of the Investment Banking
Department of CEC, the deputy general manager of
China Electronics Technology Development Corporation,
the deputy general manager of the Asset Management
Department of CEC, the deputy general manager of the
Company, a director of the General Office of CEC, a
director of Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd (@ company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange), and the managing
director of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group Company Ltd.
Mr. Liu was appointed director of the Company in October
2013.

Mr. Liu Jinping, aged 61, Mr. Liu graduated from the
Department of Radio Engineering of Beijing Institute of
Technology and is a senior engineer. Since 2003, Mr. Liu
is the general manager of China Integrated Circuit Design
Corp., Ltd (“China Huada"”), the Company’s substantial
shareholder, and the chairman of various subsidiaries of
China Huada, which include Nationz Technologies Inc.
(@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and
Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd. From
1994 to 2002, Mr. Liu was the deputy general manager of
the SDIC Electronic Co. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Liu was
the deputy general manager of SDIC Venture Capital Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Liu was appointed director of the Company in July
2010.

EENEREEAEHE
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EENREREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 67, is a senior advisor of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, the vice chairman of The
Bank of East Asia (China) Limited and the chairman of
Shaanxi Fuping BEA Rural Bank Corporation. Mr. Chan
was an executive director and the deputy chief executive
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited. Mr. Chan joined The
Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965 and possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the banking industry. Mr.
Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers, a member of the Process Review Committee for
the oversight of Hong Kong Monetary Authority, a member
of the Clearing and Settlement Systems Appeals Tribunal,
a member of the Committee of Overseers of Lee Woo Sing
College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a member
of The China Unionpay International Advisory Group and
an international senior economic consultant of The People’s
Government of Shaanxi Province. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of Chu Kong Shipping
Enterprises (Group) Company Limited, Dah Chong Hong
Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Food Investment Holdings
Limited and SOCAM Development Limited. Mr. Chan was
appointed director of the Company in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 49, Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a postgraduate degree in
Management Science and Engineering; and is a Certified
Public Valuer in the PRC, a Certified Senior Enterprise Risk
Manager in the PRC and a senior economist. Mr. Qiu is
an executive director and the general manager of China
Consultants of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd.
Mr. Qiu worked in 710 Research Institute of the Ministry
of Aerospace Industry of China as an economic analyst
for a number of years. Mr. Qiu joined China Consultants
of Advisory and Finance Management Co., Ltd (formerly
known as China Financial and Accounting Consulting
Company), a company directly managed by the State
Ministry of Finance of the PRC, in 1994 and focuses on
management consulting and corporation restructuring
transactions. Mr. Qiu possesses a wealth of professional
knowledge and practical experiences on corporate finance,
mergers and acquisitions, strategic integration, meticulous
management, etc. Mr. Qiu is also an independent director
of Lingyun Industrial Corporation Limited, Beijing Tiantan
Biological Products Co., Ltd, China National Software &
Service Co., Ltd, and AVIC Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd (all
being companies listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange).
Mr. Qiu was appointed director of the Company in
November 2012.
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Mr. Yin Yongli, aged 74, graduated from Shandong
Finance Institute. Mr. Yin is a Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC and has extensive experience in auditing and
financial management. From 2005 to 2008, Mr. Yin was
the chairman of Tianhua Certified Public Accountants.
He was the chairman of China Rightson Certified Public
Accountants and various audit firms in the PRC during the
period from 1999 to 2005. Before that, Mr. Yin worked in
the petrochemical industry in the PRC for over 35 years.
From 1985 to 1999, Mr. Yin held various senior positions
in the finance department of Sinopec Corporation. Mr. Yin
is an independent director of China Merchants Energy
Shipping Co., Ltd. Mr. Yin was appointed director of the
Company in September 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 52, is the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accounting from the University of Liverpool in England. Mr.
Ng is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has many
years of experience in auditing, finance and administration.
Mr. Ng joined the Company in November 2008.
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Report of the Directors

EEGHE

The directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits. The activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 43 of the annual
report.

The Company paid a special dividend in cash of HK$0.03
per share out of the contributed surplus account of the
Company to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 2 October 2013.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 of HK$0.03 per share (2012: nil), amounting to a
total dividend of HK$50,747,000, is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“Annual General Meeting”).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in
Note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 22 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 47 of the annual
report and Note 23 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$439,038,000 (2012: nil).

EFeRFRNREEFTERENARQFESR
2013 12A31A L FE 2 KB BERRK -

ARAR—RKREEZERAB - ARABREMBER
Al (i [ AEE 2T EXBEEKRER 2R
AABENEE TRMBARZEBEHBEHNY
BRI ©

EER DK
AEBAFE 2 REHNFRFSBAZ2HEENRE
R

KRR BHEHZGERMN2013F10828 875
AR BIRE LM Z BE AR E RN FR0.03/8 T
FERIAR B

BRANREEERRBEAS ([RRBFARE])
o BEG2013F12A3MB I FEERMNKRES
}%0.03/8 7T (20124 : £&) - 4251 /&50,747,000/8
7T|:0

MEE - BB R R E

AEERART 2 WK B R ERAEER
2 BB RS BEREH 5 -

[N

ARBZBARKNFRERNZ ZEF BN R
&~MiEE22

i

AEERARRZREERAFERNZEHFITH
REBFATAZ AR BB R M B RERME
23 °

A 5 7 K fi e

M20135 128318 ARG Z Al DR HE B
439,038,000/ 7T (20124 : #&) -

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2013



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
104 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors
Rui Xiaowu (Chairman)
Zhao Guiwu
(resigned on 11 October 2013)

Executive Directors

Xie Qinghua (Managing Director)

Liu Hongzhou (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 11 October 2013)

Liu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Qiu Hongsheng

Yin Yongli

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Rui Xiaowu and Mr. Yin Yongli will retire by
rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Mr. Yin Yongli has
notified the Company that due to age, he will not seek
for re-election as director at the Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, except for Mr. Yin Yongli, the other retiring
director, being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.
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None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2013, none of the directors nor the
chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which
were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 5 July 2013, the Company and China Electronics
Corporation Limited (“CEC”) has entered into an equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to acquire and CEC has conditionally agreed to sell
100% equity interest in China Electronics Technology
Development Co., Ltd (“CEC Technology”) at a cash
consideration of RMB600 million (the “Acquisition”). The
principal business activities of CEC Technology and its
subsidiaries have been the development and management
of industrial parks in the PRC which provides a platform
for industry players to develop electronic information
technology business. CEC is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company. The Equity Transfer Agreement
and the Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company. Details of the Equity Transfer Agreement and
the Acquisition are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 28 August 2013.The Equity Transfer Agreement and
the Acquisition has been approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 11 October 2013. The
PRC government and relevant regulatory authorities are in
the course of approving the Equity Transfer Agreement and
the Acquisition.

On 1 November 2013, CEC Huada Electronic Design Co.,
Ltd (“Huada Electronics”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and CEC Information Technology Research
Institute Co., Ltd (“CEC Research Institute”), entered into
a transfer agreement (the “Transfer Agreement”) pursuant
to which Huada Electronics has conditionally agreed to
acquire and CEC Research Institute has conditionally agreed
to sell a property transfer right (the “Property Transfer
Right”) for the acquisition of all the 6-storey and 118 car-
parking spaces on basement one of Block C of phase one
of The China Electronics Information Security Technology
Research Institute, which is located in the southern
area of Future and Science Technology City, Beigijia,
Changping District, Beijing, the PRC (the “Property”). The
consideration for the Property Transfer Right consists of
(i) a basic consideration in the sum of RMB296,374,000
(the “Basic Consideration”); and (ii) the additional
consideration representing the difference between the
Basic Consideration and the total development cost of the
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Property. CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company.
CEC Research Institute, being a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CEC, is also a connected person of the Company. The
Transfer Agreement and the acquisition of the Property
Transfer Right constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company. Details of the Transfer Agreement and the
acquisition of the Property Transfer Right are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 20 December 2013. The
Transfer Agreement and the acquisition of the Property
Transfer Right has been approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company on 10 January 2014.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements also fall under the
definition of “continuing connected transactions” within
the meaning of the Listing Rules. Details of certain of
these transactions which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules are
summarised as follows:

AYEETEEZZ2EMBAR  MAARARZ
BEALT BEZHRERBBEBYEEEEENEAA
Rl —HEHBEER S EZHaRNEYESEE
HFBEHRARQRR2013412 8208 TE 2@ K
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SIRER2014F1 A10B BITHREERAE £
HEfE

HERERS

R ETRAMEE 434 B B |RE M 222957
BOMBALZ S TBRBEMERS BT
EXHAMTLTRAGOFRRFEENRT
BRIFERL T :

Amount
k]
Notes HK$'000
Type of transaction R ER Hiat FHT
Sales of products to the CEC Group MAREFEEKXKEAFIHE i 92,950
E
Purchase of raw materials and modules from the MABEEFEBRKE R ARE Iy iii 451,708
CEC Group, provision of products processing, EMRRES RPRETE
testing and assembling services by the BB AREEERMT
CEC Group R omoBl 5 % T 25 AR 7%
Interest received from the CEC Group M EEFEBRE QA UWEL 3,148
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Notes:

China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC", together with
its subsidiaries, the “CEC Group”), is a connected person of
the Company by virtue of being the controlling shareholder of
the Company.

On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into the 2010-
2013 business services agreement (the “2010-2013 Business
Services Agreement”) with CEC. The 2010-2013 Business
Services Agreement took effect from 10 September 2010
and will expire on 30 June 2013. Pursuant to the 2010-
2013 Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to the
Group, while the Group purchases raw materials and modules
from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC Group.
Details of the 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement and
the related caps are set out in the circular dated 9 August
2010.

The Company has subsequently revised the caps for the
provision of products processing, testing and assembling
services by the CEC Group, and the purchase of raw materials
and modules from the CEC Group under the 2010-2013
Business Services Agreement. Details of the revised caps are
set out in the circular dated 19 September 2011.

On 7 May 2013, in order to continue the existing continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the 2010-
2013 Business Services Agreement and to facilitate the
Group's production and operation upon the expiration of
the 2010-2013 Business Services Agreement on 30 June
2013, the Company entered into the 2013-2016 Business
Services Agreement with CEC to reflect the terms of the
proposed continuing connected transactions and the caps
of the transactions thereunder for the period commencing
from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2016. Pursuant to the 2013-
2016 Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to the
Group, while the Group purchases raw materials and modules
from the CEC Group and sells products to the CEC Group.

The 2013-2016 Business Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 20 June
2013, details of which are set out in the circular dated 28 May
2013.

Wi
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(ii) Sales of products including integrated circuit cards and smart
cards modules and chips to the CEC Group. Sales of products
for the period from 1 January 2013 to 30 June 2013 and
from 1 July 2013 to 31 December 2013 were based on the
2010-2013 Business Services Agreement and the 2013-2016
Business Services Agreement, respectively. All the transactions
were carried out on normal commercial terms and with
reference to market prices.

(iii) Raw materials and modules purchased from the CEC Group
are for the Group's research and development of integrated
circuit cards, smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also
provides products processing, testing and assembling services
to the Group. Purchase of raw materials and modules from
the CEC Group and provision of products processing, testing
and assembling services by the CEC Group for the period
from 1 January 2013 to 30 June 2013 and from 1 July 2013
to 31 December 2013 were based on the 2010-2013 Business
Services Agreement and the 2013-2016 Business Services
Agreement, respectively. All the transactions were carried out
on normal commercial terms and with reference to market
prices.

On 19 July 2010, the Company entered into a
comprehensive financial services agreement (the “Financial
Services Agreement”) with China Electronics Financial Co.,
Ltd (“CEC Finance"”), a subsidiary of CEC. The Financial
Services Agreement took effect from 10 September 2010
and will expire on 30 June 2013. Pursuant to the Financial
Services Agreement, the financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group includes deposit services, financial
assistance and fee- and commission-based financial
services. Details of the Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps are set out in the circular dated 9 August
2010.

On 7 May 2013, in order to continue the existing
continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
Financial Services Agreement, and to facilitate the Group's
operation upon the expiration of the Financial Services
Agreement on 30 June 2013, the Company entered into
the 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement with CEC
Finance to reflect the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and the caps of the transactions
thereunder for the period commencing from 1 July 2013
to 30 June 2016. Pursuant to the 2013-2016 Financial
Services Agreement, the financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group includes deposit services, financial
assistance and fee-and commission-based financial services.
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The 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement and
the related caps were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 20 June 2013, details of which are set out
in the circular dated 28 May 2013.

Pursuant to the 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement,
the interest rates for the deposit services provided by CEC
Finance are determined by making reference to, and shall
not be less than the rates offered to the Group by other
domestic commercial banks for comparable deposits.
The maximum daily balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB280 million and
the Group's actual balance of deposits with CEC Finance
on any given day during the year ended 31 December
2013 had not exceeded such amount. For the provision
of financial assistance, the interest rates for the financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group are
determined by making reference to, and shall not be higher
than the rates offered to the Group by other domestic
commercial banks for comparable financial assistance. The
maximum amount of financial assistance provided by CEC
Finance to the Group shall not exceed RMB280 million
on any given day and no financial assistance had ever
been granted to the Group pursuant to the 2013-2016
Financial Services Agreement during the year ended 31
December 2013. For the provision of fee- and commission-
based financial services, the fees and commissions for the
fee- and commission-based financial services provided by
CEC Finance to the Group are determined by reference to,
and shall not be higher than, the fees and commissions
charged by other domestic commercial banks or financial
institutions for the same type of financial services. The
cap for fees and commissions payable for the fee- and
commission-based financial services provided by CEC
Finance to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 is RMB10 million and no fee- and commission-based
financial service had ever been provided to the Group
pursuant to the 2013-2016 Financial Services Agreement
during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the above continuing connected
transactions. The above continuing connected transactions
have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, the
above continuing connected transactions were carried out
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group,
on normal commercial terms and were in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor has
confirmed in its letter to the board of directors that:

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company’s board of directors;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

o nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded their
respective maximum aggregate annual value as
disclosed in the previous announcements.

REAFERERSME  ARAERAZDET L
MARABLAT R ER T > N R AIBILIFATT
EECEHNLAKERER S - AAREILIEH
TEERR LAFKERERXZNAKERAE
EBBREPR -RABET ARBREZEFRS
ZEBHMBRETET MXBEXBAFEE
WHERRARRZEEHNE-

REH LA FEREXZATHTIENER &%
FEDRNBESTS Z TP HER:

. i I3 0T BB E M FB LM MIBEZ
ERBEZHBERERGIRBERARRES
B

=
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. I BE BB EMF RS MBEZF
RPZEMBERTEAGRBAEEZ E
B BARETT

. MY EF BN EMNEFRESHBMBEZS
RPGEMBERTEAABRBREZEFR
SR RET &
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. MY T BN EMNEFRSMBMABEZS
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

EERNBRFXRB RS

BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered to
have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group:

REEARBEARER  THARREZHR
RAEEENEEERNEZRBEREF LA ERBK

B KT

Nature of
director’s interest
Principal business in the entity
Name of director Name of entity of the entity EEREHAER
BEspE ERER ERCFTEEK ZREEME
Rui Xiaowu CEC (Note 1) Investment holdings Chairman
B R RREEFEE (HiE1) REER BER
Zhao Guiwu Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (Note 2) Manufacturing of Chairman
HER EERERMBERAR (Hit2) integrated circuits BEER
P B B B
Shanghai Huahong Integrated Design of integrated circuits Chairman
Circuit Co., Ltd (Note 2) SEXEREE EER
EBETEKEEBRAT
(HtsE2)
Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd  Design and manufacturing Vice chairman
(Note 2) of integrated circuits BEER
EBET (KE)BRAF SR E BRI RBE
(Ktz32)
Hua Hong Semiconductor Ltd Manufacturing of Director
(Note 2) integrated circuits ==t
EHERFRAA SRR ERRE
(BtaE2)
Shanghai Huahong NEC Manufacturing of Director
Electronics Company Ltd (Note 2) integrated circuits o
FHEINECETHR AR EXEREE
(BtzE2)
Liu Jinping China Integrated Circuit Investment holdings General manager
2|5 ¥ Design Corp., Ltd (Note 2) AR 4A 438
PREREKERZTEE
BRAA (Kat2)
Nationz Technologies Inc (Note 2) Design of integrated circuits Chairman
BREMROER DA (Hat2) SRR ERRET 52K

FEEFEEEREBRAR 2013FFH
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Notes:

(1 CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate, and has subsidiaries or associates
engaging in integrated circuits related businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

(2) These companies are engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

The above mentioned competing businesses are operated
and managed by independent management and
administration. The board of directors of the Company
exercises independent judgment and is always acting for
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. Accordingly, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2013, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the director or chief
executive of the Company) had notified the Company that
they had an interest of 5% or more in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Wi

(1) FEEFEREAARFAZKEEERRR -PHE
FEER—FREFEFREMAMKITEZZEE
BELRER HMERRSBERRHELSE
EAREEEGER R EBREF R RERBKE
FZERERBEES -

2 HERARREMBARHBEARSIEREER
SEXBEERXERBENEFRAEBKREFZ
SKERBERES-

FRZBEFREOHBLEEENITRABEE
KRB - RRREZGITEE Y HIE RIAKRRQF
REBRR 2 BEFmTE - Bt - AREFAER
FEENBYN EABFER 2 TALERGE
% o

BRERAHBER ZKRR

2013512 A318  RIEFH K HEKHI 336
AR BEBEE2EZMA R THAL (AR
REERGERTHRABRINEMNEARRKSE
BEARRRBBITIRAS% KA £ 2w

Number or
attributable
number of
shares
interested Percentage
BEREMN of shareholding
Name of interested party BERERELRR BB BERESHK
China Electronics Corporation China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 48.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([CEC (BVI) )
China Integrated Circuit Design R KEKE KR T EE 393,680,000 23.27%
Corp., Ltd (“China Huada") BREAR([FREZEKX])
CEC (Notes 1 and 2) REEFEE (HiE1k2) 1,206,180,000 71.30%
SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd BRI RIEEBRAF 393,680,000 23.27%
(Note 1) (Htaz1)
The State Development and Investment B BIZE R E N A (A15E7) 393,680,000 23.27%

Corporation (Note 1)

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2013



Notes:

(1) The equity interest of China Huada is contributed as to
50% by CEC and as to 50% by SDIC High-Tech Investment
Co., Ltd. SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The State Development and Investment
Corporation, which is a state-owned investment holding
company established under the laws of the PRC. By virtue of
the SFO, CEC, SDIC High-Tech Investment Co., Ltd and The
State Development and Investment Corporation are deemed
to be interested in the 393,680,000 shares of the Company
held by China Huada.

() CEC holds 100% interest in CEC (BVI) and is deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by CEC
(BVI). The directors regard CEC, a state-owned enterprise
established under the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate
holding company of the Group.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2013, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Report of the Directors
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Wi

(1) FREAZBRAEZDBATREFEEREHE
BEFIREERARS B HES0% - BREEHE
BEERAAABEARMABRE ARG ZZEMBR
A MBRABREE QR A —RIBEPREAEK
N ZEBEREEBRAT - IREESF RIS KM
FEETEE BERaSRREEARARARKER
FEREARERARBERBEZEAMBAEZARA
7)393,680,0000% B 170 < 25

@) Bl E T BB CEC (BVI)Z100% s » ALK
RAFFBCEC BVNEFTHFB 2 AR AR 2 s o
EFEeRPEEFEE (REPEAEK L ZE
B¥)RASEZEKIER AR -

PiE LA BE 2 E A RARRIRMD 2R -

B EXEHBEESN R2013F128318 A AR
REMSHITMEMALTHEELRDFRD KA
D BRERBIEES K EIKFI 33615 A E
GrzERMRAZERIAR -

BrRBERE

RATZ AR ERMAKEEE 2L ELHE
FEBR IR -

B HEEEF S

REZ2013F12A831BIEEFEER  AA A EE
I E AR EELO B ETRAQNTRG B
RN &) IR 4 B O] B AT {A] B o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for 62.5% of the Group's sales for the
year and sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
accounted for 17% of the Group's sales for the year.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 85.3% of the Group’s purchases for
the year and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for 50.9% of the Group's purchases for
the year.

CEC Group is not a beneficial owner of any of the five
largest customers and is the beneficial owner of two of the
five largest suppliers of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital are held by the public
and fulfills the requirement under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

TERFRAEED

HE2013FNA3MBHIEEE AEBEHFRAARF
ZBRHEROASEEAFEHEREZ262.5% M
AEEGARFPZHEBMAEEAFTEHESR
Z17% B E2013F12A31B 1L FE - AEEHE
AABEEZAREBEROASEEAFERBERE
853% MAKBEAEER 2 RBHEGAEE
RNEFEHREE 2509% °

THEFEEXNEARYFAEBEERAATFPH
ESBEARRAREERRHEER 2 H P ML
MESEEA-

BEXEBEN BEES BEEAOBRA
SAEMBR (FEEHAFAALADEIRA
5%\ F ) A AEE B AR SR 2
LEEE

AMERE

RARER  BLAHEHAR R Z 2ARER ERAR
RESEMA ARACDHTRAEREEDLE%
HARALTRELNE EWHRAZER-

DEMAEBREHE2013F12A31H 1k
Zar G TRk o
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Rui Xiaowu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA ELECTRONICS CORPORATION HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 103, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4
B
.
e

BYZBEEHE
BHEEFEEZRERLAZEKRE

(RESHEFTMA LR AREBELEZH
R 22 7])

RNAZEED (AT (3 M)) EBZINE R F43
BEEFIBEZHFRETERIZERER AR ([&
RAERENBRAR (KB IEEE]) 2EEAY
MK WA B HRERBENR2013F12A31H
ZEERRAREEABREHEZEZHIEFE 2R
AWBER GEEEKRER SAESEHRRE
ERERER URERXGETEERBE & H
AREER -

EERSAAVBBERAREZEE

BERRZEFTRAAEREFTEGTHASRMZ
ERMBREERRIZBEE (RAIEA) BB
BRERMESSMBRRANSEAVBRRMED
EEMAFHRER REEEARAREGAUE
MRV ERNNI BT ARGRE M ERER T
BRI R M B E KRB RBRL -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
R R E: &S
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

malsER
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE
2013 2012
2013%F 20124
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FET FAETT
Revenue WA 5 1,308,184 1,155,632
Cost of sales $HE AN 7 (721,132) (703,904)
Gross profit EX 587,052 451,728
Other gains — net Hib Uk 28— F 58 6 33,937 28,679
Selling and marketing costs SHE BTG #HEEKA 7 (59,064) (57,310)
Administrative expenses THRX 7 (318,705) (200,768)
Operating profit KRR 243,220 222,329
Finance income — net mE WA —F58 10 8,254 3,194
Profit before taxation KR Fi Al % R 251,474 225,523
Taxation 1B 11 (27,578) (27,939)
Profit for the year AN FEEEF 223,896 197,584
Attributable to owners of EERAQAEZEEE
the Company 12 223,896 197,584
Dividends BE 13
Special dividend paid 2R ER R AR B 50,747 —
Dividend proposed EERE 50,747 -
101,494 -
HK cents HK cents
Al el
Earnings per share BRER 14
— Basic —HARK 13.24 11.68
— Diluted —¥8 13.24 11.68

PHETEEZERARAT 20135585 43
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHElRER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MBLFE
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Profit for the year REERF 223,896 197,584
Other comprehensive income for AFEEHMEERKE:
the year:
ltems that may be reclassified BRIt ED EE RIS
subsequently to profit or loss: EERIEE
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINETEE
foreign operations MEHZRE 24,692 639
Translation reserve of two PRC established BESNaIEIavard )=
subsidiaries reclassified to profit or loss on Nl FEE
liquidation RERFENRZE
i M BT 1R (8,823) =
15,869 639
Total comprehensive income for rFEETHEHWSARE
the year 239,765 198,223
Attributable to owners of FERARAEZFEE
the Company 239,765 198,223
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%12A831H 2012F12H31H
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
kA TET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE REE 15 17,835 21,210
Intangible assets EREE 16 4,845 3,671
Deferred tax assets RAERIEE E 11 45,872 41,950
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EcHEE 18 2,544 2,467
Other non-current assets EMIEREEE 310) 63,595 =
134,691 69,298
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 291,264 308,185
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A B U IR 20 539,714 494,604
Taxation recoverable AR IR 24,023 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMkReEEY 21 746,012 476,619
1,601,013 1,279,408
Total assets EERE 1,735,704 1,348,706
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable AARERRFEE
to owners of the Company B
Share capital and premium B& A w8 22 289,171 889,171
Other reserves HibfE 23
— Proposed dividend —EEKRE 50,747 =
— Others —EAh (20,758) (320,599)
Retained earnings IR %= F 675,660 237,230
Total equity AR 994,820 805,802
Liabilities aE
Non-current liabilities eI =R
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIBEE 11 7,739 =
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E M e RKIE 24 725,360 526,900
Taxation payables JE A~ 75t 18 7,658 14,771
Short term bank loans EHEITER 25 127 1,233
733,145 542,904
Total liabilities BEHEH 740,884 542,904
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEEE 1,735,704 1,348,706
Net current assets REBEEFE 867,868 736,504
Total assets less current liabilities EAEZEBABEE 1,002,559 805,802

The financial statements on pages 43 to 103 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 27 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Rui Xiaowu 5 B &
Director %

HNFBEEFIBEZFERRELESTe R
ggisﬂy B R IRETIE  Wh I ALK
BE:

Xie Qinghua #f & &
Director &%

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FI;
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Balance Sheet

EERER

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
2013%12A31H 2012F12H31H
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
g TET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE &G 15 914 1,031
Investments in subsidiaries P EENGIE = 17 553,280 658,429
554,194 659,460
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H i fE W FRIB 20 83,559 3,278
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEBY 21 103,582 78,737
187,141 82,015
Total assets EEHTE 741,335 741,475
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRkEE
Equity S
Share capital and premium BEA w8 22 289,171 889,171
Other reserves H s 23
— Proposed dividend —EERE 50,747 -
— Others —H A 345,644 61,672
Retained earnings/ RBEF,

(Accumulated losses) (E&tE8E) 42,647 (214,534)
Total equity B 728,209 736,309
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables B 5 K E e FRIE 24 5,468 5,166
Taxation payables e I8 7,658 -
Total liabilities RERE 13,126 5,166
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 741,335 741,475
Net current assets RBEEFE 174,015 76,849
Total assets less current liabilities #2EERAEBERE 728,209 736,309

The financial statements on pages 43 to 103 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 27 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Rui Xiaowu & B &

Director &%

HNFBEEFIBEZHBERERLEFTFSN
2014F3 A27 At /E RIRETIEE > il FHIALER

REE:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATRERFEEEN
Share capital Other Retained Total
and premium reserves earnings equity
B A % (B Hit ke R B F ERAE
(Note 22) (Note 23)
(K1522) (H1it23)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHATT FATT
At 1 January 2012 ®2012%181H 889,171 (321,238) 39,646 607,579
Total comprehensive income 2HEWF A% = 639 197,584 198,223
At 31 December 2012 M2012F12H31H 889,171 (320,599) 237,230 805,802
At 1 January 2013 M2013FE1818 889,171 (320,599) 237,230 805,802
Total comprehensive income ZERRERE - 15,869 223,896 239,765
Transfer of share premium BREERORER
to contributed surplus BEHAEH (600,000) 600,000 = =
Elimination of accumulated WA AR RE
losses of the Company 518 = (214,534) 214,534 =
Payment of special dividend A 1 RIS B - (50,747) - (50,747)
At 31 December 2013 20135128318 289,171 29,989 675,660 994,820

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FI;
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

Year ended 31 December

B Z12A31BLLFEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FET FHET
Cash flows from operating REFTERZ
activities REeERE
Cash generated from operations KEEEZRS 26 373,850 219,168
Interest paid AT FE (171) (546)
Income tax paid SRS T (30,200) (28,530)
Net cash generated from KEEHEEL
operating activities e FHE 343,479 190,092
Cash flows from investing REZHZRERE
activities
Interest received W ER 7 2 8,425 3,740
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BELKEZEN
equipment and intangible assets EILEE (20,338) (20,655)
Payment for acquisition of XM EYEEEE
property transfer right EQ] 310%) (63,595) =
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE HE R
plant and equipment RIBFT1S IR 301 14
Net cash used in investing activities & & )EENFTA 2R & /558 (75,207) (16,901)
Cash flows from financing METHZRERE
activities
Proceeds from bank loans RITEXFTERIA 127 1,233
Repayment of bank loans borrowed EZRITER (1,233) (24,670)
Net cash used in BEEBTAZ
financing activities & F5 (1,106) (23,437)
Net increase in cash ReRBREEEY
and cash equivalents N EEE 267,166 149,754
Effect of exchange ERE) 2
rate changes TE 2,227 (2,588)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRE R
beginning of the year REeEEY 476,619 329,453
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRZEER
end of the year ReZEEY 21 746,012 476,619

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which is
established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the design, research and
development and sale of integrated circuits.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation
(a) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(@) Compliance with HKFRS and Listing Rules (Cont'd)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
had adopted the following new and amended standards
that are relevant to its operations and effective for the
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2013:

HKAS 1 (amendment) Presentation of other
comprehensive income

HKFRS 7 (amendment) Financial instruments: Disclosures
— offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

Annual improvements Amendment to HKAS 1 “Financial
2011 statements presentation”
Amendment to HKAS 16
"Property, plant and equipment”
Amendment to HKAS 32 “Financial
instruments: presentation”
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2.1

b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont'd)

The adoption of the above new and amended standards
did not have significant impact on the results or financial
position of the Group for the current year.

The following new and amended standards that are
relevant to the Group have been issued but are not
effective for the accounting period beginning on 1 January
2013 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 32
(amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

Financial instruments: Presentation
- offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities (effective from
1 January 2014)

Investment entities (effective from

and HKAS 27 1 January 2014)
(amendments)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (effective date yet
to be determined)
Annual improvements ~ Amendment to HKFRS 3 “Business
2012 combinations” : and consequential

amendments to HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments”, HKAS 37 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent
assets”, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments — Recognition and
measurement” (effective from

1 January 2015)

Amendment to HKFRS 8 “Operating
segments” (effective from 1 January
2015)

Amendment to HKAS 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” (effective from 1 January
2015)

Management is currently assessing the impact of the above

new a

nd amended standards to the Group's financial

position and performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013  # Z2013F12A318H It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
will be included in the consolidated financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal (except for acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control which are accounted for using the
principles of merger accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting on
those common control combination as disclosed in Note
2.2(c) below, the acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business combination by the
Group. The consideration transferred for an acquisition
is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Acquisition-related transaction costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate
of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree is less than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet (Note 2.7). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company in the Company’s income statement to the
extent of dividend received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013  #HZE2013F 12318 LFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries under common control by the Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirers’ interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under common
control, whichever is shorter and regardless of the effective
date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet dates or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or businesses are eliminated on consolidation.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs
or losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the
common control combination is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(c) Common control combination (Cont'd)

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has been
recorded in the merger reserve in consolidated financial
statements.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “finance income/
(costs) — net”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
"other gains/(losses) — net"”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(c) Group companies

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are
taken to other comprehensive income.

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements 5 years (or over the lease

term, whichever is

shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised within “other gains/(losses) —
net” in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of one to three years.

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into two categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 1 year after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (Notes 2.10 and 2.11).

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in the other category. They are included in
non-current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 1 year of the balance sheet date,
which are classified as current assets.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sale of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets. However, for available-for-sale financial
assets that do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed, is stated at cost. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013  # Z2013F12A318H It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (Cont'd)

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
financial asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired.
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets is
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net” when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established. Interest on available-for-
sale securities calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “other gains/(losses) — net”.

When available-for-sale securities are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement.

2.8.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. All impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is
considered as an indicator that the financial asset is
impaired. If any such evidence exists, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in income statement
and in equity, is recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised on available-for-sale equity
instruments are not subsequently reversed. Impairment
testing of trade and other receivables is described in Note
2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in 1 year or less, they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulty of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement
within “administrative expenses”. When the receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other financial institutions and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of 3 months or less.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or share options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.13 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Grant relating to an asset is included in non-
current liabilities, which is credited to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Grant relating to an
expense item is deferred and recognised as income in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary
to match with the cost that it is intended to compensate.

2.14 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within 1 year or less. If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 1 year after the balance sheet date.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred taxation is not recognised for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred taxation is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013  # Z2013F12A31H It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow of resources with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate trustee — administered
funds. The Group's contributions to MPF Scheme are
expensed as incurred.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to make
contribution to staff retirement scheme managed by local
government authorities in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the income statement as and when incurred.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions.

(b)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(c) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 1 year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013  # Z2013F12A31H It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow of resources
occurs so that the outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers, the
customers have accepted the goods or the product quality
inspection time period has lapsed and collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and
the interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing
of identifiable and unique software products are recognised
as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

- it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development of the software product
are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the
software product cost includes employee costs for software
development and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred.

Other development costs that do not meet these criteria
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development
costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives, which does not exceed three years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred due
to the fact that the Group had some business activities
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group's business
activities are primarily exposed to foreign exchange risk
in respect of Renminbi (“RMB"”) against Hong Kong
dollar (“HK dollar”) and United States dollar (“US dollar”)
against RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the
entity’s functional currency. In additions, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against HK
dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2013 would have been
HK$1,337,000 higher/lower (2012: HK$109,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

As HK dollar has been pegged to US dollar, the directors
are of the view that foreign exchange risk in relation to
transactions denominated in US dollar is low.

As less than 10% of the Group's foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign currencies,
the directors are of the view that foreign exchange risk
in relation to transactions denominated in other foreign
currencies is low. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis for these
currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Other than deposits held in banks and other financial
institutions, the Group does not have significant interest-
bearing assets. The average rate on deposits held in banks
and other financial institutions at 31 December 2013
was approximately 1.95% (2012: 1.42%) per annum.
Any change in the interest rate from time to time is not
considered to have significant impact to the Group’s
performance.

The Group's interest rate risk which affects its results and
operating cash flows mainly arises from bank borrowings.
The bank borrowings were at fixed rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. As all the Group’s
bank borrowings were short term loans and any change in
the interest rate from time to time is not considered to have
significant impact to the Group’s performance.

e IR R MY

HZE2013F 128318 L EE
3. BERARER#)

3.1 HHERREE (&)
@ SMNERESE (&)

MR TEETHE WEERREAUAETA
BERXRHZINERBRER-

HRAEEDRI0%ZINER Z AR B &5
B WEFRBREBALBEETERS ZNE
R EM it WES L FEEE 27 8RED

#r

b) HERTERILEFERE
BRERREBEITREMPEERE TR RNEE
WEERNZHBEE -72013F12A318  FK
RIBTREMTBEEZERZFHEFEFNER
1.95% (20124 : 1.42% ) o TE M A E Z (T {a]
BEUAEBEBETESTSATE-

FTEARBRENKLERGREZNXEREE
KERITEE -RITEEHD/ES  WEAEE A
BEARENERR ARAEERTEEHRE
HIE R I%Th%%ﬂTZEH FBH AR E
CEBUWEBEBERTE

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FIH
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e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013  # Z2013F12A31H It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the balance sheet date is their carrying value. The Group
has policies and procedures in place to ensure they are
made to counterparties with acceptable credit quality.

All the Group’s deposits with bank and other financial
institution are placed in high quality financial institutions
without significant exposure to credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their
financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the
credit quality. Given the constant repayment history, the
directors are of the opinion that the risk of default by these
counterparties is not significant. Further disclosure on credit
risk are set out in Note 20.

(d) Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including maintaining
sufficient working capital, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed borrowing
facilities and the ability to close out market positions is
adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by
ensuring sufficient committed borrowing facilities are
available.

3. BIXERER &)

31 HMERBEZX (&)
© 1EEERE

AR EL S E R 2 ERAR S HERER
SRASZEMNE S R B ATE & -
NEEREY 2 ESERARALEAE A%
HEE TR REE BRRSHZEHEEA
A DA K -

AEBEMAERBRITREMT BB ZFRAFER
VTESBAEERRZBEMBEHE-

REZMEMERHEAMS XZEF2EEE
ZEBEBEMBINN  EEREREMERM
fEHF G -EREERBRREEERFMAEMAT
EoERNREZESGCE EFRR/LFXHEHT
BRFREZRBRIE NN - BEEERRZE—F
AHIRE M EE20A ©

@ EEETER

AEERABHEHZARDESCERER BHER
RN THLEES RO IEBAHREEERATEIN
REZCAHIRESCRBEEMBFRZEN

AHPRAZEAXRBERRRE EUAERESH
ez BIEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MY

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.

(Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities by maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BRERER &)

3.1 HHERREE (&)

@ RBELEE (&)

table are based on the contractual undiscounted cash flows

of the financial liabilities.

31 December

HZE2013F 128318 L EE

TREJAEBERARBABEEZEREE I
TRBHABIHERN REHEEREZSNIH
AZHGBREETOINM - RRFHEEZERAE
TRIREBEEHOZARBREREFH -

31 December

2013 2012
Within 1 year — X 20134128318 20124128318
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Group TEE
Short term bank loans HHRTER 133 1,293
Trade and other payables & 5 K H A R 5B
(excluding deferred government grants, (T BIEEEBATFE
other taxes payables and advances from H b & A< B0 18 I TR UK AR )
customers) 520,869 385,598
521,002 386,891
Company NN
Trade and other payables B 5 K H A e 5B
(excluding other taxes payables) (T FEEAFEFEIE) 5,394 5,141

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes bank borrowings, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, which comprises issued equity
and reserves.

3.2 EXEKRERE

AEEETEAERRERRASE ZERKA
FELLE YERBBILERRERERSERR
B AR A B o 7N 5 B B 58 5 BK 4R 45 B LA AT
sfe—=rie

AEEY A A B EES (RERTES) R
AD MR A R (REERTRER
BB -

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FIH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013  # Z2013F12A31H It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in
the consolidated balance sheets, plus net debt.

The Group's strategy is to maintain an operation with
minimal capital risk. As at 31 December 2013, the Group's
cash and cash equivalents exceeded its borrowings by
HK$745,885,000 (2012: HK$475,386,000). The directors
are of the opinion that the Group's capital risk is low.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are grouped
into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had no
financial instrument measured at fair value and hence
did not have any Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 financial
instrument.

3. BIXERER &)

3.2 EBEXEREE(#F)

AEERAENABLREREARRAR S X
TIABETSFER NE RN ERETE - ERFRIRE
ERBERAEIReEEBYTE EXRERERKR
BEERBEXRMIIRZESNER FEAH -

AEBZEBEREFEAREEARREE -
2013F12A318  A&BE s Re MBS SEYE
i8 f& §745,885,000/%8 7t (20124 : 475,386,000
BIL) EEREASEEAE 2EARBRER-

3.3 QR{EME

NAREAEZERMIEARAEABERAAERE
DEB/TNI—==4:

. F—RAnEFENEHEREELABRE
Bi5H 2 ®E CREHR)F

. E_RAREAENRE-RAEEZR
BN BEEXBEANER (AMER) KEE
(BEBRITE)BRZBARESL -

. E=RANEFETIAFERF AN IEREF]
BEMSBECEENABIHARE (&
EBREZBABRE) ZAERMEL -

M2013F K2012F12 A31H  REBREAAR
EZEMT A R WE IS —4 - 55 Ak
EFE_HemIT A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different jurisdictions.
Estimation and judgment is required in determining
the amount of the provision for income tax. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred taxation provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

In accordance with the corporate income tax laws in the
PRC, a 10% withholding tax will be levied on the dividend
declared by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. During the
year, the directors of the Company reassessed the dividend
policy of its major subsidiary established in the PRC, CEC
Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”),
based on the Group's current business plan and financial
position, certain retained earnings generated by Huada
Electronics would be distributed to its non-PRC registered
intermediate holding company and as such, deferred tax
liabilities in this respect was provided in the year to the
extent that such earnings are estimated by the directors of
the Company to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the Group for
the earnings of HK$586,990,000 (2012: HK$482,000,000)
expected to be retained by the subsidiaries in the PRC and
not to be remitted out of the PRC in the foreseeable future.

e IR R MY

HZE2013F 128318 L EE
4. FTEGSEFTRHAE

41 BB RELERIE

AEBEBAR TR BEERBAFER - REE T
SHREREG BN FELAETRAE KRBT
EXBRPFERI NAEHHUBEERRZ
MBEE MExFEHIEEBMBERBING
MNER 2B RSEZENEBEERYEHZHME
BB ARBELRE -

BIBFFPBEMCEMEHE B2008F1 18 8 %
ERBEKTH AR REGINGEE DRI B
W10% M TEMFAEH - RAFR - RRRESER
REBERBEBT S RA B R EHEERK LR
FEZFEMNBARIERTPEERETFRITAR
BEERARI([ERET])WRERE  EXEFH
ETRBEFESIKTHFBFEIIHBIZRAD
Ao Bt - UAR R B EE(HFTA A TE R A5 2K 9K &Y
B ABER RAFTEREBREEHRBEEIEL
P o

AEBYEFRTERATEMBARNRBEETER
A8 B R R ok 1 7 B3R S & B8 A&586,990,000
7 7T (20124F : 482,000,0005% 7T ) B9 3% F # & &
ERIEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont'd)

4.2 Impairment of trade receivables

Management reviews its trade receivables for objective
evidence of impairment. Significant financial difficulty of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered as objective evidence that a
receivable is impaired. In determining this, management
makes judgments as to whether there is observable
data indicating that there has been a significant change
in the payment ability of the debtor, or whether there
have been significant changes with adverse effect on the
market and economic environment in which the debtor
operates. Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgments as to whether an
impairment loss should be recognised as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables of the
Group at 31 December 2013 is HK$45,308,000 (2012:
HK$4,335,000).

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

(a) Revenue

B E2013F12A318 LEE

4., FTESEFTRHUE 2

42 EFEWFRERE

EEERMNEBIRENEARSRBRERE-
BBALREAM R B AR ERESE
THBER  URERIBHANFK  HRESZE
WHRIBREEBREEE CECRER E2ES
HE AR ABRENBRNEBANERENEE
RES AELHEBAREAENT IS REHE
REBNINEZENERED WHEEBMER
B EEEHEBBDRERERER/M -

AREBR2013F12A31B M E 5 FE W X IE R/ E
B 1% /545,308,000 7T (20124 : 4,335,000/
JT) °

5. WARDHESR

(a) WA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A310LLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$"000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Integrated circuits products ERERER 1,308,184 1,155,632
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013  #HZE2013F12A31H ILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. WARDIER &)
INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) Operating segments (b) EEHI

Management has determined the operating segments FEEECREBEES (EBLERARE) BEBET
based on the reports reviewed by the directors (the HMRERSEERANRE BELEDE -
chief operating decision maker) that are used to assess

performance and allocate resources.

The directors consider that the Group's operations are %%%@E$$@i‘“%2¥ﬁ%lf —DEEERE
operated and managed as a single segment, accordingly no B HERREESIHER -
operating segment information is presented.
In terms of geographical location, nearly 100% of the BHESMHME AEEEIT100% .2 BWAKE R
Group's revenue is attributable to the market in the PRC HFETTS EBEI0% ZERBEEMLNFE-
and over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.
Total non-current assets by location are as follows: EwEE D ZIERBEELENAT
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013124318 2012412A31H
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET FHT
PRC 1 87,771 26,112
Hong Kong B 1,048 1,236
88,819 27,348
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 45,872 41,950
Total non-current assets per R EERBRZ
consolidated balance sheet ERB B ERRE 134,691 69,298

FEETEBERARAT 2013F£H 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

6. OTHER GAINS - NET

B E2013F12A318 LEE

6. Hitblzs—FH

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2013 2012
20135 20124F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Government grants B 8 B 26,859 30,737
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries YNVt 8,823 -
Exchange gains/(losses) PEH Wz, (E5E) 680 (717)
Others HAth (2,425) (1,341)
33,937 28,679

During the year, the Company liquidated CEC Media
Technology & Service (Suzhou) Co., Ltd and CEC Integrated
Circuit (Beijing) Co., Ltd, both of which were wholly-
owned by the Company and had been dormant. As a
result, translation reserve attributable to these two PRC
established subsidiaries of HK$8,823,000 was reclassified
and recognised as a gain on liquidation of subsidiaries.

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing
costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

RERN ARG EL2ERE MR —ERNEE
MAR PEEERMERY (BN BRAR &
FEEXNERE (ER)BERARIELBFE - EIt -
ZMR R BRI 2 BB A Bl E 48,823,000 7T
CERBEHESEIRERS—ENBARESR
W2 o

7. RUEESEIZEH

SIS E AR AS ~ $HE N 35 1 B A AR R 1T B X
ZERAWMT:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31MBLLFE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHEER
(Notes 15 and 16) (BtaE15516) 22,722 16,982
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERMNAX (K1:28) 140,523 130,680
Changes in inventories of finished goods B KR @
and work in progress FEZE 25,064 (60,729)
Raw materials and consumables used Fir BB TR A4 L K2 0H A 700,445 731,534
Research and development costs it 9% M i B2 AR AR 213,002 163,355
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) B 5 MW 2 A
provision for trade receivables (Note 20) B, (Bm) (Kit2z0) 40,238 (14,905)
(Reversal of provision)/provision FEz (BERRB) BiE
for inventories (Note 19) (f1a£19) (8,143) 21,001
Operating lease expenses on property MEZKEHERS 15,607 11,289
Auditor’s remuneration % BB BN 5,838 1,909
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

e P BHmRME

HZE2013F 128318 L EE

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EERAMAX
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYEF 125,433 116,441
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRGET IR
(Notes (a) and (b)) (KaE@) b)) 15,090 14,239
140,523 130,680

(a) The Group operates a MPF Scheme for the eligible
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions
to MPF Scheme are expensed as incurred.

(b)  The Company’'s PRC subsidiaries participate in
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible for
the pension liabilities to these retired employees in
the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries made contributions
to retirement schemes in the PRC and are expensed
as incurred.

(a)

AEEREEBEEREERBESA
B AEBEHBRBEEEZHINELR
SIYERA X °
RRBER B Z B LR ERE S BDED &
ROI2REREFENRAS -HEBEHEM
TR EEEZSTREERKESR ZRIK
SEE-ZEPENB LA RKGEE
HEH R R EERTIERX

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FIH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A318 It FE

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

9. EEREEM=

(a) E=M=

BEENEHZE2013F12A31HIEFE 22 &5
R

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Discretionary
Name of director Fees #¢ 2R ENRETE bonus Total
EEpgE Be BENER it BERA &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THERT TET TET THERT
Rui Xiaowu PR - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou* 24T M * - 167 3 - 170
Zhao Guiwu** HHE R - - - - -
Xie Qinghua HEE - 750 171 1,263 2,184
Liu Jinping 25T 200 - - - 200
Chan Kay Cheung PRI S 200 - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng iip= s 200 - - - 200
Yin Yongli F oK F 200 - - - 200
800 917 174 1,263 3,154
& Appointed on 11 October 2013. X 20131011 B EZ -

** Resigned on 11 October 2013.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the directors of the Company had waived
any emoluments during the year.

B R2013F10 A 11 BB

FR AEETEAARREENERMEER
MRS EK R 2 BBV E QBT FE -
FATERARREEZHEEAME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRME

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(a) EE=M= (&)

)

HZE2013F 128318 L EE
9. EENEEME &

REBZNEHZE2012F12A31BIEFE 2B & H 5|

December 2012 is set out below: N
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind  contributions  Discretionary
Name of director Fees & RUKk RIKSFTE bonus Total
BENT ik BB HR IBIEAL &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET FHET
Rui Xiaowu B - - - - -
Zhao Guiwu HER - - - - -
Xie Qinghua* WEE - 108 28 = 136
Fan Qingwu** B+ - 346 76 640 1,062
Liu Jinping 2|EF 200 - - - 200
Chan Kay Cheung BRIEE 200 - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng*** [ Ak A Hx 33 = = = 33
Wong Po Yan**** BRR**** 167 - - = 167
Yin Yongli FoxF 200 - - = 200
800 454 104 640 1,998
@ Appointed on 24 August 2012. * MR201268A24HEZL -

xx Resigned on 24 August 2012.
xHRx Appointed on 1 November 2012.
****  Resigned on 1 November 2012.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose

S 201248 A24 A BH{E -
% FOONRENAIBERET-
*xxx FAI0124E11 B 18 BEE -

(b) HEESHFMAX

paid were the highest in the Group during the year are as s

follows:

FARNTAKREFHERS2ABALT ZME 10

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYREF 4,931 3,549
Bonuses TE4T 13,133 8,195
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRFTEIH R 352 237
18,416 11,981
REETEEERAR AT 2013FE£R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

9. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2012: one) director of the Company and

their emoluments were within the following bands:

B E2013F12A318 LEE

9. EEREEME &)

(b) ZEEREHMAL (EF)

AEZEeHFMALTRERDRN—H (20124 :
—Z)EEMESEZMENTATEE:

Number of individuals

A

2013 2012

201345 20124

HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,0003% 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0015% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0015% 7T — 2,500,000/ T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0015% 7¢ — 3,000,0007% 7T - 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T —4,000,000/% 7T 3 —
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017% 7t — 4,500,000 7T - -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 — 5,000,000 7T 1 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office.

10. FINANCE INCOME - NET

1B

FAAEEYERTLRKEHMALMAER
e ER RSB SN 2 RE Sk (ERBEE

10. BEWA—FHE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest income on short term deposits 5 ETF SR B A 8,425 3,740
Interest on loans ENFE (171) (546)
8,254 3,194
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

e IR R MY

HZE2013F 128318 L EE

11. TAXATION 11. BiE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Current taxation REEHIE
— PRC corporate income tax — B ZEMSH 15,554 41,288
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —EoEHNZ
BHMEH 7,533 -
23,087 41,288
Deferred taxation BRIER IR
— PRC corporate income tax —FR R EMEN (3,248) (13,349)
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits —ROBENZ
TRHPRISH 7,739 -
4,491 (13,349)
27,578 27,939
(a)  No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been (a) HBHRAEERAFEARBBLEELT
made as the Group did not generate any assessable A ERB & A ML T FBFSHAIED
profit in Hong Kong during the year (2012: nil). BB (20120F - /) o
(b)  In accordance with the corporate income tax laws of (b) BESLBETGEMSHE EAXNETFH2008
the PRC, the applicable statutory tax rate of Huada FIAVBRZEREEMER/25% R
Electronics is 25% from 1 January 2008. However, - BEREREFHEER BIXKREMMD
Huada Electronics qualified as an “Integrated Circuit WEKEBRZRTEZE]  FALBE2013F1 A1
Design Enterprises in National Planning Layout” and HIZE2014F12A31BEARETFER10%
thus enjoyed a 10% preferential tax rate from 1 ZEBEHE-
January 2013 to 31 December 2014.
(c)  According to the relevant regulations of the (c) WREBEPRECEMRSHEINBEBARE +

corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when a
foreign investment enterprise distributed dividends
out of the profits earned from 1 January 2008
onwards to its overseas investors, such dividends are
subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%.

SAZIERECERRAERIMNEE DK
H2008F1 A1 EEL/MEIESKRE
ZERBRBNI0% RS -

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FIH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

11. TAXATION (Cont'd)

(d)  Reconciliation between the taxation expense on the (d)
Group's profit before taxation and the theoretical

B E2013F12A318 LEE

11. HE (%)

taxation that would arise using the respective
applicable statutory tax rates are as follows:

AEBRBANEN 2 HIRMAX BIZE B &
ROREREATE < EmBA SR

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Profit before taxation BR 54 B i A 251,474 225,523
Calculated at respective applicable REEBBREEME
statutory tax rates STE 2 1A 65,155 57,739
Effect of tax concession HEREZZE (21,002) (24,179)
Research and development i 7% I Fe 3
costs additional deductions R AR BESNOBR (23,047) (8,701)
Expenses not deductible for ki
taxation purposes 53 1,003 372
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MEEBHLHRELTHIAEL
taxation mE (12,783) =
Withholding tax on distributed profits and ENBmMNRAEE
current year's undistributed profits RO Bm Az
BB R 15,272 =
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEERRLEHREEEZ
asset was recognised (Note (e)) MIEEE (fitE) 2,980 2,708
Taxation expense HIEF X 27,578 27,939
(e) Deferred taxation (e) IEEFIE
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
20134 20124
12A31H 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Deferred tax assets EIETRTE & E 45,872 41,950
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE (7,739) =
38,133 41,950
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MY

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A318 It FE

11. TAXATION (Cont'd)

(e) Deferred taxation (Cont'd)

The movements in the deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:

11. HIE (%)
(e) IEELEBLIE (£)

FRECHABERBBEZESHNT

Salary and Deferred

Impairment welfare  government
of payables grants

inventories BRI B Others Total

Deferred tax assets EEBBEEE FERE 30| BB Hith &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET FHET THET FHET

At 1 January 2012 R2012%€181A 2,857 7,507 11,972 6,224 28,560

Exchange differences EHER 10 5 24 2 41

Credited to the income statement & Uz & 3,150 1,649 7,727 823 13,349

At 31 December 2012 R2012512831H 6,017 9,161 19,723 7,049 41,950

At 1 January 2013 M2013F181A8 6,017 9,161 19,723 7,049 41,950

Exchange differences MEHZRE 49 97 267 261 674
(Charged)/credited to (3T AN) /B elzER

the income statement (2,755) (2,624) (1,856) 10,483 3,248

At 31 December 2013 ®2013%F12A31H 3,311 6,634 18,134 17,793 45,872

Withholding tax

on undistributed

profits of

a PRC subsidiary

Bt A R

RABERA 2

Deferred tax liabilites ELRELE FEMFEHR

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 January 2013 R2013F181A8 =

Charged to the income statement 5+ AURzE & 7,739

At 31 December 2013 M2013§12831H 7,739

FREEFEEERABRAT 2013EER 83
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
11. TAXATION (Cont'd)

(e) Deferred taxation (Cont'd)

The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet
include the following:

B E2013F12A318 LEE

11. HE(£)

(e) ERFEBIIR (&)

RIFEEERERISZEBEEEATER

31 December 31 December

2013 2012
2013%12A31H 20129F12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THIT

Deferred tax assets EEHBEEE
— To be recovered after more than 12 months — & 121E A 18 4 D 11,554 737
— To be recovered within 12 months — #5121 A A Y [E] 34,318 41,213
45,872 41,950

Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
— To be recovered within 12 months — #1218 A Rk 7,739 =

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carrying-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
During the year, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets of HK$2,980,000 (2012: HK$2,708,000) in
respect of losses amounting to HK$18,058,000 (2012:
HK$16,263,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income.

12. PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 included
a profit of HK$42,647,000 (2012: loss of HK$13,764,000)
which has been dealt with in the separate financial
statements of the Company.

BEERBEENRES 2 HBEBEMEER
LA G B 8835 38 R 2R 2 JIE 2R i 03k 1) 4 3R 75 B 7 1B A
mAR - RAFER  AEBE I KA
A 2R RR TR 5 A 2 518 18,058,000/ 7T (20124F -
16,263,000/% 7T ) T 3R L& 7 18 & EE2,980,000/8
7 (20124 : 2,708,000/ 7T) °

12. ARRERFAERGER, &8

HE2013F12A31BIEFE AR EaFAE &
JEAG4R AT - AE42,647,00058 7T (20124
E51813,764,0008 L) KB A ER AR R 2B
BSmRANEIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

13. DIVIDENDS

During the year, the Company paid a special dividend of an
aggregate amount in cash of HK$50,747,000 (representing
HK$0.03 per share) out of the contributed surplus account
of the Company to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 2 October
2013.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 of HK$0.03 per share (2012: nil), amounting to a
total dividend of HK$50,747,000, is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
It is proposed that such dividend will be paid out of
the contributed surplus account of the Company. Such
proposed dividend is not recognised as a liability in these
financial statements.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
is based on the following data:

e IR R MY

HZE2013F 128318 L EE

13. RE
RER ARFBEEHREBREMMNR2013F1048

2EBEVARBIRREMZREANE IR FE58
50,747,000/ 7T (= M%0.03/870) 2RI 8 -

BRANGEEREBEFRNE £ EF2013F
12A318 LFEIRMAIRE ASRR0.03% 7T (2012
G 4E) 85t A50,747,00008 T 0 AR BE &
BARRIZEBREGBERIRN ZE2ZERELER
AP BHRERNERE—HEE-

14. BERER
FREARBFRF RS T SEE:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2013 2012
20135 20124
Profit for the year attributable to RARERGAEE
owners of the Company (HK$'000) JE b 2 S E 5 A
(F%&T) 223,896 197,584
Weighted average number of ordinary AU EGRER
shares for the purposes of basic and RESE RN 2 &R
diluted earnings per share I B 1,691,560,000 1,691,560,000
Earnings per share (HK cents) BRRAER ()
- Basic —ER 13.24 11.68
~ Diluted (Note (a)) — 858 (Kit@) 13.24 11.68

(@) The Company did not have any potential ordinary
shares outstanding for the year ended 31 December

2013 (2012: nil). Diluted earnings per share is
therefore equal to basic earnings per share.

(@) EZE2013F 128318 I EE AR T &
T ARZBEITEBEL R (2012F 1 48)
I SRS ERMNESREABFESE -

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FIH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HE2013F12A318 LEE

15. WX -BEKZE

(@) Group (a) &%
Leasehold Plant and Motor  Furniture and
improvements machinery vehicles fixtures Total
HENELERE 5 R es B GRREE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET TET TEL
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1810
Cost A 5,433 23,583 7,872 677 37,565
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (3,819) (13,116) (3,193) (449) (20,577)
Net book amount REFE 1,614 10,467 4,679 228 16,988
Year ended 31 December 2012  EZ2012512H31H
tEE
Opening net book amount FOERmFE 1,614 10,467 4,679 228 16,988
Exchange differences e ®) (17) (1 ) (27)
Additions RE 3,177 7,674 701 35 11,587
Depreciation & 2,273) (4,713) (285) (67) (7,338)
Closing net book amount FRE@FE 2,510 13,411 5,094 195 21,210
At 31 December 2012 M2012512A318
Cost XA 8,609 28,606 8,572 702 46,489
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (6,099) (15,195) (3,478) (507) (25,279)
Net book amount FEFE 2,510 13,411 5,094 195 21,210
Year ended 31 December 2013 & Z2013F12831H
LEE
Opening net book amount ENERRFE 2,510 13,411 5,094 195 21,210
Exchange differences R ER 59 352 137 3 551
Additions RE 59 2,043 604 15 2,821
Disposals e - - (217) (24) (241)
Depreciation e (1,110 (4,527) (803) (66) (6,506)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 1,518 11,279 4,815 223 17,835
At 31 December 2013 2013128318
Cost (B 8,933 31,544 8,138 755 49,370
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (7,415) (20,265) (3,323) (532) (31,535)
Net book amount EHFE 1,518 11,279 4,815 223 17,835

Depreciation expense of HK$28,000 (2012: HK$26,000)
and HK$6,478,000 (2012: HK$7,312,000) has been
charged to selling and marketing costs and administrative

expenses, respectively.

Lease rental expenses amounting to HK$15,607,000 (2012:
HK$11,289,000) relating to the lease of property are
included in the income statement.

1 & # 2 28,0007 7T (20124 : 26,0008 7T ) &
6,478,000 7T (20124 : 7,312,000/ 7)) & 2 B/

FEAHE RIS HEREKAMITH A -

EHAEWEMEBAII5607,000%8 THE (2012
F:11,289,0008 T) Eff AR 2 HHERS ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013  #HZE2013F12A31H ILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. WX BENSZE £)
(Cont'd)
(b) Company (b) A&RQF
Leasehold Motor  Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Total
HEMELE B ERREE =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHEIT FHBT
At 1 January 2012 R201261818
Cost XA 220 1,877 325 2,422
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (220) (1,406) (205) (1,831)
Net book amount REFE - 471 120 591
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZ2012F128318 LEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 471 120 591
Exchange differences [ERER - (1) 1 =
Additions NE - 701 13 714
Depreciation neE - (237) (37) (274)
Closing net book amount FREEFE = 934 97 1,031
At 31 December 2012 M2012%12A831H
Cost B 220 2,578 329 3,127
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (220) (1,644) (232) (2,096)
Net book amount REEE - 934 97 1,031
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ2013F12831A LEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 934 97 1,031
Exchange differences BE 5= 58 - 10 2 12
Additions NE 59 - 115 174
Disposals HE - = (1) (1
Depreciation nE (7) (252) (43) (302)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 52 692 170 914
At 31 December 2013 M2013%12A31AH
Cost XA 306 1,906 435 2,647
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (254) (1,214) (265) (1,733)
Net book amount REFE 52 692 170 914
FEETEEERAERAT 2013F£RH 87
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e B HmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE2013F12A318ItFE

38

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP 16. BEEE—4FKHE
Computer
software
B iE 4
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2012 201251818
Cost PR 7S 35,121
Accumulated amortisation S 3 (30,840)
Net book amount SR FE 4,281
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE2012%F128318 L FE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 4,281
Exchange differences MEH ZHE (34)
Additions IR 9,068
Amortisation 55 (9,644)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 3,671
At 31 December 2012 R201212H31H
Cost [N 44,183
Accumulated amortisation e 5| (40,512)
Net book amount BREFE 3,671
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F128318 L FE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 3,671
Exchange differences M H =5 (127)
Additions IR 17,517
Amortisation 5 (16,216)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 4,845
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12H31H
Cost N 63,083
Accumulated amortisation REr#E (58,238)
Net book amount BREFE 4,845

Amortisation expense amounting to HK$16,216,000
(2012: HK$9,644,000) has been charged to research and

development costs under administrative expenses.

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

— COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HZE201

3FE12A318ILEE

17. B ARIKRE—A DT

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
2013F12A318 20129 12A31H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Investments — unlisted equity interests, RE—FFE TR
at cost RAAE 553,280 646,729
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (b)) FEURHTE N BIRIE (H13EDb)) - 11,700
553,280 658,429
Less: provision for impairment R E R - -
553,280 658,429
(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 (@) TEMBAAMN2013FK2012F12H31H

December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

ZHBIWT

Registered and

Place of establishment Principal place of paid-in capital Interest held directly
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities R E R BEfEER
=1 BB R D RME TEREHUREY X 2013 2012
CEC Integrated Circuit ~ PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and US$12,000,000 - 100%
(Beijing) Co., Ltd* company development and sale 12,000,0003 7T
RESKER (ER) FE AREERQA of integrated circuits
BR AR HE - SRR B 2 Bk
MERHE
Huada Electronics PRC, limited liability PRC, design, research and RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
ERETF company development and sale AR #50,000,0007T
FEBREEAR of integrated circuits
B R E B 2 Bk
e KiHE
* It was liquidated by the Company in October 2013. & AR AARARR2013F10 A EHER -
(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries were quasi- (b)

equity in nature, unsecured, interest-free and with

no fixed term of repayment.

'R 28

PEETFREZERERAR

FEWE AR A BERS D HAE
BB E &R

2013 F 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS - GROUP

Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted equity
interest in a company established in the PRC and are
measured at costs less impairment at balance sheet date, as
these assets do not have a quoted market price, the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
possibilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably

assessed.

19. INVENTORIES - GROUP

HE2013F12A318 LEE

18. AMHHEESRHEE-F5E

AL ESRMEERE KXTE

P32 3F ETR

AIRY R HE - R B AT A S| TR E R I

S ARERBBRAMBIES R

EREZIEEG

ATREM - AN AEE A AR BRI E R #T & -

19. EE-X&KEHE

31 December

31 December

2013 2012

20131248318 2012912A318

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Work in progress 71,419 84,852
Finished goods 219,845 223,333
291,264 308,185

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included BRAEAXAYFTAHEXNETAZFEXRAEAR

in cost of sales amounted to HK$725,509,000 (2012:

HK$670,805,000).

Reversal of provision for inventories of HK$8,143,000
(2012: Provision for inventories of HK$21,001,000) has
been credited/charged to cost of sales.

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

725,509,0007% 7t (20124 : 670,805,000/ 7T ) °

BH8, 143,000 Tt 2 FEBERD (201240 : F
E#4521,001,0008 ) DR FHABEEK A -

200 ESNHMEWKIE

Group Company
REE RAF]
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013%12H318 2012412A31H 2013%F12H31B 2012412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TER FAT FH&T FAET
Trade receivables & 2 WA 551,190 488,304 2,486 =
Less: provision for impairment & : J8l (B B
(Note (c) (Htit () (45,308) (4,335) - =
505,882 483,969 2,486 -
Other receivables from related = fh i€ U BB A £
parties (Note 29) SKIB (K1:229) 242 265 80,248 2,807
Undeducted input RHBRA
value-added tax HEIRIEER 21,213 - = =
Prepayments and deposits B HIERZS 4,799 7,507 765 469
Other receivables H At e YL FRI8 7,578 2,863 60 2
539,714 494,604 83,559 3,278
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #H ZE2013F12A318H It FE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont'd)

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts of
trade and other receivables of the Group and the Company
approximate their fair values.

All trade and other receivables were due within 1 year, non
interest-bearing and unsecured. Included in the balance of
trade receivables are trade receivables from related parties
of HK$32,086,000 (2012: HK$16,744,000) (Note 29).

Trade and other receivables of the Group and the Company
at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are denominated in the
following currencies:

200 ESREMEWRKIE &)

MR2013F K2012%F12 8318 REB R A AR 2
BSNhEMEWRFIACEREEEARAERS -

FIBEE S hEMEBWHIEHLN —FREEH WRE
TERERA T AESERKBLEHRAZEY
RAEE A+ &2 5 78 532,086,000 7T (20124 :
16,744,000 7T) (M13£29) »

ANEE M ARNTN2013F K2012F12 8318 2
BHMEMEWRGRBZREEE M :

Group Company
PN | b NN

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013F12A318 201291273318 2013%F12A318 20129 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TEx THT
Renminbi ARE 533,264 493,238 76,633 369
US dollar e 2,486 541 2,486 -
HK dollar BT 3,964 825 4,440 2,909
539,714 494,604 83,559 3,278

(@)  The majority of the Group's sales are with credit
terms of 30 days to 135 days. The remaining
amounts are due immediately after the delivery of
goods. At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis

(a) AEEZHEERBMHZEEHRAE30BE135
H- ERHERBEEERINRFIE R
2013128318 ' B 5 E W A (05 &

BEEG) 2ERRAERB 2K DT

of the trade receivables (net of provision for N
impairment) based on revenue recognition date are
as follows:
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%12H31H 2012412A31H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FExT AT
Current to 30 days 30BAR 303,252 241,603
31 - 60 days 31H=Z60H 71,798 81,632
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B A ERIFA 127,096 158,580
Over 1 year 15 LA E 3,736 2,154
505,882 483,969

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FI;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE2013F12A318 LEE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. BEZRHEMEBWRE &)
(Cont'd)

(b)  The trade receivables which were past due but (b) 2013412831 H B @ EIB I & 7 &
not impaired amounted to HK$75,367,000 at 2 B 5 WA 575,367,000/ 7T (2012
31 December 2013 (2012: HK$107,542,000). F:107,542,000 7T) - th % & 5 B WK
These related to a number of customers with high R EWRERRIBLEZEE
reputation for whom there is no recent history BRIFEFEHE ARERDTWT :
of default, the ageing analysis of these trade
receivables are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
2013%12H318H 2012412H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 30 days 30BN 20,023 23,753
- 60 days 31HZ=60H 18,276 35,735
Over 60 days and within 1 year 60B LA ERI1FERA 33,332 45,900
Over 1 year 1A 3,736 2,154
75,367 107,542
The other classes within trade and other receivables B 5 K& E b W GRIE R 2 H X8 5l 3 R B

do not contain impaired assets. SREEE-

(0 At 31 December 2013, trade receivables of (0 M20134F12H31H " 45,308,000/% 7T
HK$45,308,000 (2012: HK$4,335,000) were (20124 : 4,335,000% 7T ) 2 & 5 B FKIA
impaired. The individually impaired receivables B R E ° TI%'JMTEE’JJEHSZTAIEIEXQ
mainly related to certain customers which are in BRIERAIINRBERRRHRLERTS -
unexpectedly difficult economic situations. It was EERKRIBEE ST EKE - BitE
assessed that these receivables are not expected to HE R ERE-
be recovered and thus full impairment provision was
provided against them.

Movements in the provision for impairment on the AEEBZRWFBERERE ZEEHHT
Group's trade receivables are as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET

Beginning of the year F ) 4,335 19,295

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) provision BERE S (BE) 40,238 (14,905)

Exchange differences MEHZER 735 (55)

End of the year FR 45,308 4,335
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. RERREEEY

HZE2013F 128318 L FE

Group Company
REE AAFE
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135128318 20129F12A31H 2013%F12H31H 2012412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET TET FHET
Cash Be
At banks and on hand RITEFRRS® 90,876 218,637 5,587 3,355
At other financial institutions ~ Eth B i g 4517
— A related party (Note 29) — AL
(H15%29) 40,701 46,864 40,701 46,864
131,577 265,501 46,288 50,219
Short term deposits REER
At banks SRITHTF 304,093 159,321 31,856 3,853
At other financial institutions ~ E At B I g 4515
— A related party (Note 29) L YN
(H15%29) 310,342 51,797 25,438 24,665
614,435 211,118 57,294 28,518
746,012 476,619 103,582 78,737

The effective interest rate

on short term deposits at 31

December 2013 was 1.95% (2012: 1.42%) per annum.

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM

M2013F12A31H " EHEFERZERENR A
1.95% (20124F : 1.42% ) °

22. RAERRE

Group and Company AEERADT
Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
BREEOIETZ
EER
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE  EETRER TS R 5 E Ch
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fik Tk THT THT THET
At 1 January 2012 and R201251A818 K
at 31 December 2012 R2012%12A318 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171
At 1 January 2013 RW2013F181H 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 872,255 889,171
Transfer to contributed surplus ~ EEHEEH A H
(Note 23(c)) (Hiz£23(c)) - = - (600,000) (600,000)
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A318 30,000,000 1,691,560 16,916 272,255 289,171
HEEFEEZERERAR 2013F F1K
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e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

23. OTHER RESERVES

S

2013128318 IEFE
23. Hf#®E

Group rxE
Surplus Translation Merger Other
reserve reserve reserve reserves Total
BERfEE B A Aot Hitn i CL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT THT THT
(Note (a) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(Hizt@a) (Hiztw) (HizHc)
At 1 January 2012 RH201251R18 16,309 58,258 (327,605) (68,200) (321,238)
Currency translation differences ~ E#IAE =58 - 639 - - 639
At 31 December 2012 R2012%12H31H 16,309 58,897 (327,605) (68,200) (320,599)
At 1 January 2013 RW2013F1818 16,309 58,897 (327,605) (68,200) (320,599)
Currency translation differences ~ E#HBEZ - 24,692 - - 24,692
Reclassify to the income statement  FAM B 2 A% SR 6
on liquidation of subsidiaries ENBRENEER
(Note 6) (Hit6) (8,823) - - (8,823)
Transfer from share premium BERMEEZR
to contributed surplus ERRH - - 600,000 600,000
Elimination of accumulated WA AR Rat
losses of the Company e - - (214,534) (214,534)
Payment of special dividend R ERIARE - - (50,747) (50,747)
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H 16,309 74,766 (327,605) 266,519 29,989

(a) Surplus reserve

According to the laws and regulations of the PRC and
enterprise’s articles of association, the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to provide for certain statutory
funds, namely, general reserve fund and enterprise
expansion fund, which are appropriated from profit after
taxation but before dividend distribution based on the
local statutory accounts prepared in accordance with
accounting principles and relevant financial regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its
profit after taxation to the reserve fund until the balance
of such fund has reached 50% of its registered capital.
Such appropriations are determined at the discretion
of the board of directors. The general reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to
offset accumulated deficit or increase capital. Enterprise
expansion fund can be used to expand production or to
increase capital.

(a) ZEERfEE

RIBFEVERRER  UREEZRARER AR
AETBEZHBARANEE TAEES 25l
R—RERESMEEERES HAREET
Bt REm 2 &5 R R R AR M BER MR
HBREAERBAEZRRERTRRE DK
2 MR ER o itk R BB A B AR AR R
MEDI0%DEEFHEES BEEZRBESHE
HREEHFMEARZS0% I - ERRBES
ENEET - —REGBESEEARERMUAER
AR AEEERAERREMER - CXERE
SHARBREESIEMNER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

23. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
Group (Cont'd)

(b) Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the consideration shares issued to China Integrated
Circuit Design Corp., Ltd (“China Huada”) and the 64.75%
of paid-in capital of Huada Electronics acquired from China
Huada under common control.

(c) Other reserves

The amount recognised in other reserves includes the
difference between the fair value of consideration shares
issued to non-controlling interests of Huada Electronics for
the acquisition of their interest in Huada Electronics and the
Group’s share of the carrying value of net assets of Huada
Electronics acquired.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 20
June 2013, resolutions were passed by the shareholders to
approve the followings:

i) the share premium account of the Company be
reduced from HK$872,255,000 to HK$272,255,000
by the amount of HK$600,000,000;

ii) transfer of the credit arising from the reduction
of the share premium account to the contributed
surplus account (included in “other reserves”) of the
Company;

iii) using the amount then standing to the credit of
the contributed surplus account of the Company to
eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company
as at 31 December 2012 totaling HK$214,534,000;
and

iv) payment of a special dividend of an aggregate
amount in cash of HK$50,747,000 (representing
HK$0.03 per share) out of the contributed surplus
account of the Company to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 2 October 2013.

e IR R M

HZE2013F 128318 L FE

23. Htb{@HE 2)
RKEE (#&Z)

(b) EOHEE

SARBHE AR TRER AR R
SR M AR AR (BB ) HER

o R B AR A 260 75% FAE T B
AAZEH

(o) HftEfE

EHMHEETER L EBEREAKRBERNETF
RS R MR T TERE T IRERIEE
S BERD 2 A EEAREEESTREEX
ETZEERERAEZER

RARF2013F6 420 BHMNBRTHIAR
b BRBEIRE R AR E T HIFEIR

i) AR B D = B BR 872,255,000/ Tt Al
600,000,000 75 Z=272,255,0005% 7T ;

i)  HHBEROSEREEZEREREAR
RlZEMEERNCERBREEK:

i) BDAESBESBEZERBEMBEAAD
FMR2012F12A31B 2 2t EE &
214,534,000/ 7T : &

iv) BEEHMABGERAMN2013F1082H & 75
RANB B2 EAR € RS 42 %
50,747,000/ 7t (& A%0.0378 7T ) 2 £ Bl %
g\o

FEETFEEZERERAR 2013FF 8,

95



96

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

23. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)
Group (Cont'd)

(c) Other reserves (Cont'd)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the board
of directors proposed the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013 of an aggregated amount
of HK$50,747,000 (2012: nil) out of the contributed
surplus account (included in “other reserves”) of the
Company. After payment of the dividend, the other
reserves will have a debit balance of HK$20,758,000.

HE2013F12A318 LEE

23. HMb#E#)

rEE(E)
(o) EHtufEE (&)

RmEHARE - ESSEEB2013F12A318 1k
FEAARRIZEMBEHRAZEMBHRIRIRMNE
%850,747,000 7T (20124 &) 2 IR B - 1B IR
Nz B 1% HAibfE#% 15 520,758,0007% 7T K9 15
T EREE -

Company NN
Contributed
surplus
ERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2012 and R2012F1818 &
at 31 December 2012 #R2012512H831H 61,672
At 1 January 2013 7A2013F181H 61,672
Transfer from share premium EEARMEE 600,000
Elimination of accumulated losses of the Company WESHA QR 25T EE (214,534)
Payment of special dividend IEREEFI P (50,747)
At 31 December 2013 2013%12H831H 396,391

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in Section
54 thereof.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the board
of directors proposed the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013 of an aggregated amount
of HK$50,747,000 (2012: nil) out of the contributed
surplus account of the Company. The balance of the
contributed surplus account after payment of the dividend
will be HK$345,644,000.

RBBARZEIBIFREE (KIER])  ARBZE
BERTTRZIGPIBESARFAFIRZETERT D
KT AR

R|EARE - ESSEEB2013F12A318 1k
FEBARABEHRHBRIRIK T 4%850,747,0007%
T QRONFE:\|)ZBRE -MIKRIKNZKER &
R BRER 45 R 148 5345,644,0008 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

e IR R M

HZE2013F 128318 L FE
24, ESNHMENKIE

Group Company
rEE PN
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135128318 2012912A31H 2013F12H318H 2012412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT FTHER FHATT
Trade payables Z 5 SRR 274,142 243,889 1,873 =
Other payables to Hoqth FE AT BAESE A £
related parties (Note 29) RIA (M17329) 61,051 3,701 438 =
Salary and welfare payables JRE {1 B T 357 B 76,064 72,536 1,012 3,317
Deferred government grants  #EZE K i 4 B
(Note (a)) (Biit(@) 181,342 131,488 - -
Other taxes payables H th FE TR I8 1,542 7,615 74 25
Advances from customers TEULBR K 21,607 2,199 - =
Other payables and H R HRIER
accrued expenses TEIRE A
(Note (b)) (Btet®b)) 109,612 65,472 2,071 1,824
725,360 526,900 5,468 5,166

Amount represents various subsidies granted by
and received from local government authorities
for financing various research and development
projects conducted by the Group. These subsidies
will be recognised as income over the period
necessary to match with the cost that they are
intended to compensate.

Other payables and accrued expenses mainly
represented payables for software usage fees for
the purposes of research and development and sales
commissions.

At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade payables are as follows:

(@) ERERARNEEMELFAEIEE MM
TR 6 B M B 2 % T 4 B © bk 480 B AR R4
MR zEz A EREREMB R AELE
Z HERERBUWA -

(b) HtsEMNFBENMAIRERTIEAEMNARG
FMFEEEN R ERABAREERSE -

R2013F12831H  AEBE 5 FER I8 2 IR iR
DU ¢

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

2013%F12A318 20129F12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TATT

Current to 30 days 30HAR 90,195 78,516
31 - 60 days 31H £60H 66,410 76,376
Over 60 days 60H A £ 117,537 88,997
274,142 243,889

FEETFEEZERERAR 2013FF 8,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables to related parties amounted to HK$159,065,000
(2012: HK$227,568,000) (Note 29).

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts
of trade and other payables of the Group and Company
approximate their fair values.

25. SHORT TERM BANK LOANS - GROUP

HE2013F12A318 LEE

24, EFRHMEMARIE#)

AR ZENRBEERAZENEBALESR
T8 73159,065,0007% 7T (20124 : 227,568,000/%
JT) (HaE29)

M2013FE K2012F12 8318 REB RARA T 2
BEOREMEMANREZEREEEALBERS -

25. EHIRTER-—ZXEH

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

20135128318 2012512A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Unsecured 48 $ 46 127 1,233

The bank loans at 31 December 2013 were repayable
within one year and bear interest at the average borrowing
rate of 6.90% per annum (2012: 6.00%).

The short term bank loans are all denominated in Renminbi
and their carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

The Group has undrawn committed banking facilities
of HK$76,186,000 at 31 December 2013 (2012:
HK$72,763,000).

R2013F12831H RITEXER—FARNEER
BT E EE M E6.90% (20124 :6.00% ) 5t
E\o

RHRITERINARKFE MEKEEEHR
NAERE-

R2013F12A31H AEB R RBBAZEEH
RITHEEHE A A76,186,000/ 7T (20124 -
72,763,000/ 7)) ©
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26. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013  #HZE2013F12A31H ILFE

REELE RS

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLFE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Profit before taxation B 75 Al ) 251,474 225,523
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, W HWE &
plant and equipment RETE 6,506 7,338
Amortisation of intangible assets m A EEH 16,216 9,644
Interest income M EWA (8,425) (3,740)
Interest expenses FEXZ W 171 546
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries YNVt e
(Note 6) (Htite) (8,823) =
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BE X
plant and equipment FE (60) (14)
257,059 239,297
Changes in working capital LEEEY
Inventories #E 16,921 (39,728)
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H A FE W RIE (60,702) (89,932)
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M RN RIE 160,572 109,531
Cash generated from operations KREEECZRSE 373,850 219,168
27. COMMITMENTS 27. EE
(@) Operating lease commitments (a) REHERIE
The Group and the Company’s future aggregate minimum AEBRARNBRBETABR ZMERFEAE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for EZREHEMARKRR I N2 HEEERIAE
factories and office premises are as follows: BT
Group Company
3. | AT
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
20135128318 2012%12A31H 2013%F12H318H 2012412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT FET FATT
Not later than one year 1R 14,538 13,649 1,028 1,689
In the second to fifth year F2FEEFHFSFA 8,593 18,352 852 39
23,131 32,001 1,880 1,728

TEETFREZRERAR 2013F F&K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & Z2013F12A31HILFE

27. COMMITMENTS (Cont'd) 27. EiE (&)
(b) Capital commitments (b) EXREE
The Group had the following outstanding capital AEERBEHRERBITHERAEDT:

commitment at the end of the reporting period:

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
2013%12H31H 2012412H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B R BE:
— Acquisition of 100% equity interest in China — B B E TR
Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd F#EBRAF100%
(Note 30) PRtz (H1aE30) 763,135 -
28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28. HEAR

The Group did not have any material contingent liability at M2013F12A31B AEBEUBEMERNKE R

31 December 2013 (2012: nil). & (20124 : &) -

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 29. BABAIXRZRER

BALANCES
In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed BRRAAGENERREMBOHERENR S R E
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the BN RAFEARNSEER B EEKBIEF EE
Group entered into the following material transactions in MATHETT TIREERARS :
the ordinary course of business with related parties during
the year:
(a) Significant transactions with companies under (a) HEHIFEEFEEHEZEFHZATAZEKR
common control of CEC R5
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MBLLEE
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Sales of products HEEMm 92,950 101,099
Purchase of goods and services RIS M MRS 451,708 584,997
Interest received U ER A B 3,148 1,235
Rental paid X fMHEE 992 941
Loan from CEC (BVI) (Note (j)) CEC BVNE K (H173)) 10,000 -
Interest paid SRNEN 110 -

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F 128318 L FE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 29. BBATXRERES (&)

BALANCES (Cont'd)

(a) Significant transactions with companies under (a) HIEAFEESFEEHEZEFHZATZEKR
2

common control of CEC (Cont'd)

Note (i):

In April 2013, the Company obtained a HK$10,000,000 unsecured
short-term loan from China Electronics Corporation (BVI) Holdings
Company Limited (“CEC (BVI)"), the immediate holding company of

(%)

HaE () -

the Company. Such loan bore an interest rate of 2.2% per annum and ZEFEE22%IWEFR2013F 107 €& -

was repaid in October 2013.

R2013F4 7 - A AR M EEZEHEM A T China Electronics
Corporation (BVI) Holdings Company Limited ([CEC
(BVI) ] ) EX4510,000,000/8 7T 7 IR G BB SR 2 H X

(b) Significant balances with CEC and companies (b) HABEEFEEURSHHEEFEEHE

under common control of CEC

BEHz AR ZEXGE S

31 December

31 December

2013 2012
2013%12A318H 2012412A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CEC FEETFE

Other payables H A FE SR8 61,051 3,701

Companies under common ZHEEFEE L EE

control of CEC AN

Trade receivables 2 5 eI GRIE 32,086 16,744
Other receivables H A & Y SRIB 242 265
Deposits TR 351,043 98,661
Trade payables 2 5 N RRIA 159,065 227,568

Other than the deposits which is interest bearing, the

above balances with related parties were unsecured, B EBWRIBESRIGHEE -
interest-free and settled according to the contract terms.

(c) Key management compensation

() EZEEEBAE#ME

BrfF RS RO A BAEE A TAE SR R

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMREYET 3,991 2,864
Contributions to retirement schemes BIRFTEIHE R 225 152
4,216 3,016

HEEFEEZERARAR 2013FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2013  #HZE2013F12HA31H LFE

30. ACQUISITION OF CHINA ELECTRONICS
TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD

On 5 July 2013, the Company and CEC entered into
an equity transfer agreement pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to acquire and CEC
has conditionally agreed to sell 100% equity interest
in China Electronics Technology Development Co., Ltd
at a consideration of RMB600 million (equivalent to
HK$763,135,000) (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting held on 11 October 2013.
As at the date of these financial statements, the Acquisition
has not yet been approved by the relevant PRC government
authorities.

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(i) Acquisition of property transfer right

On 1 November 2013, Huada Electronics and CEC
Information Technology Research Institute Co., Ltd (“CEC
Research Institute”) entered into a transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which Huada Electronics has
conditionally agreed to acquire and CEC Research Institute
has conditionally agreed to sell a property transfer right
(the “Property Transfer Right”) for the acquisition of all
the 6-storey and 118 car-parking spaces on basement
one of Block C of phase one of The China Electronics
Information Security Technology Research Institute, which
is located in the southern area of Future and Science
Technology City, Beigijia, Changping District, Beijing, the
PRC (the “Property”). The consideration for the Property
Transfer Right consists of the sum of RMB296,374,000
(the “Basic Consideration”) and the additional
consideration representing the difference between the
Basic Consideration and the total development cost of the
Property.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group has paid a deposit
of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$63,595,000) to
CEC Research Institute in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Agreement. The payment of the above
deposit was captured in “other non-current assets”. The
acquisition of the Property Transfer Right was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting held on 10 January 2014. As at the
date of these financial statements, the total development
cost of the Property has not yet been finalised and the
acquisition of the Property Transfer Right has not yet
completed.

30. WIEHFEETFREHAFRAT

R2013F7H58 A ARIEEARHE FEB L
HEEE B AR R B EEGREWEmE
BEFEEAERHERELERRETFRIEAEEGR
NA)Z100%[E AN BB A AR E6E T (18
£ 763,135,000 L) ([HEEl) -ZWIEE &
BAATBIREN2013FE10 811 BETHIRKRE
BRASH A BHEAMEHRE A  ZWESF
Fh B0 4 8 K T M R L O

31. &=/
() WEwEEEE

M2013F 11818 ERXEFHAPE/FEHIMHARE
BRERAR ([FEMRER] )T LEZRZE ([
) Bl EAESFCAKEREWEmMS S
MEREEFEGHRELHEPREHIERME F &t
RARBI IR RS RE 715822 RIMHER
—HICRZz—ZENERMT—B18EAEN ([
W] 2 EEEE ([MEEER]) - MEEE
WHEBIESE A ARK296,374,0007T 2 £
REE ([ERHE])  REINEE  NELRHE
BZMEZRERKN A B2 EF

HE2013F124F318 1F A& B IR B %% 89 15
TR % A5 1) A B A 9 B S 5 AR #650,000,0007T
(#8%763,595,000/8 70) Wiz ¢ - Lz € &+t
HetATEMIERBEE | - WIEYEE ZEEE
EESAQARBIUREN2014F1 108 ETH
BRREFHASHE - HEAMBHRRAE  ZWE
BERKANAGEE WEVEESEREEEAR
SERK °

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Cont'd)

(ii) Issue of RMB2,750,000,000 4.70% bonds due
2017

On 16 January 2014, the Company issued a 4.70%
unsecured bonds due 2017 in the principal amount of
RMB2,750,000,000 (the “Bonds”). The issue price of the
Bonds is 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds and
will mature on 16 January 2017. The Bonds bear interest
at the rate of 4.70% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears. The Bonds are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 85940).

CEC assists the Company in meeting its obligations
under the Bonds by entering into a keepwell deed and
a deed of equity interest purchase undertaking. Under
the keepwell deed, CEC will undertake to, inter alia,
directly or indirectly own and hold more than 50% of the
outstanding shares of the Company, cause the Company
to maintain a consolidated net worth position of at least
US$1.00 at all times and to have sufficient liquidity to
ensure timely payment of any and all amounts payable
under or in respect of the Bonds in accordance with the
terms and conditions thereof. If the Company at any time
determines that it will have insufficient liquidity to meet its
payment obligations as they fall due, then the Company
shall promptly notify CEC of the shortfall and CEC will
make available to the Company, before the due date of
the relevant payment obligations under the Bonds, funds
sufficient to enable the Company to pay such payment
obligations in full as they fall due.

Under the deed of equity interest purchase undertaking,
CEC will undertake to, upon the occurrence of events
of default under the terms and conditions of the Bonds,
subject to satisfaction of certain conditions (including
compliance with the Listing Rules by the Company),
either by itself or through one of its PRC incorporated
subsidiaries, purchase certain equity interests in the
registered capital of one or more PRC incorporated
subsidiaries of the Company at a certain price in order to
allow the Company to discharge its obligations under the
Bonds.

e IR R MY

HZE2013F 128318 L EE

31. HIZE1\E (#)

(i) BWITR2017FFHZARYE
2,750,000,0007t4.70% f& %5

R2014F1R16H AAR BT A BEAEAR
#2,750,000,0007C 1220174 E| HA #94.70 % £ K
HEH([EF]) BHFR2BETERESFATHE
2 100% I A20175F1 16 B B H o EHIRF F =
4.70% B WEABFFRERIT - BHFRES
BMEXSHMARRAA LM (RMHASR:85940) °

TRETRESBIVARBREIROERERE
EERNBARRBITENEREBE N 2EE
RERFRERL FERETFSERAE (HEF
BRIBEEXEEERAFAARFS0%ALZ
BEBRTRO  REARARNEMNKEDEFLES
FERDI00EXT YERRRDE S ABRR
BERBLE S 2 R R AR 5 28 B SN 2 (A
Ko i B AN SRR o fish AR 1 R) AR B PR 8/ L S
RERRARBDESETHIMNR2EME BIKX
ARANBSENTEErEEEEZERS R
MABEEFRBEARBEESNARNRE T
BRIMARRRERECES  UERAF AR 2
HAABETERNREE-

REBEBERBE AR WBEEESF 2 HRRRIE
HETZENSEH ATBRETRESEARES
THREEER (BRARREST EMRR) 2BR
THEAGHBBEAPEEMKLZEFR—K
MEBARRE - ERBEARBNFBEZEMAIL
Z—RIZRMBRARZEMEARS 2EHTIRA
o AEXARREITENEFBE TN ZEE

FEEFEEERERAR 2013F FIH
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Five-year Financial Summary

IFRBRENEE

Set out below is a summary of the financial information of
the Group for the last five financial years.

AT RASERBERAEAMBFERNHERBR -

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
20135 20124 20114 20105 20094
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET FHET FHET
Continuing operations RERE X
Revenue WA 1,308,184 1,155,632 995,111 574,586 460,533
Profit before taxation B %54 A g A 251,474 225,523 131,229 63,126 60,995
Taxation Fii8 (27,578) (27,939) (16,570) (3,185) (7.171)
Profit for the year from REKE 2 XK
continuing operations RE % A 223,896 197,584 114,659 59,941 53,824
Loss for the year from BRIEEE 2K
discontinued operation REEERE - - = = (15,819)
Profit for the year REE 5 7 223,896 197,584 114,659 59,941 38,005
Attributable to; SHER:
Owners of the Company RARERHEE 223,896 197,584 114,659 59,941 41,072
Non-controlling interests FErE Gl e - - - = (3,067)
223,896 197,584 114,659 59,941 38,005
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
31 December
12A31H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
20135 20124 20114 20105 20094
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FET FHET FHET
Total assets BERE 1,735,704 1,348,706 1,054,878 858,146 732,790
Total liabilities BERE (740,884) (542,904) (447,299) (385,359) (328,461)
994,820 805,802 607,579 472,787 404,329

China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2013
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